Public Document Pack

Resources Department
Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD

AGENDA FOR THE HEALTH AND CARE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Members of the Health and Care Scrutiny Committee are summoned to a meeting,
which will be held in the Council Chamber on 16 November 2021 at 7.30 pm.
Enquiries to
Tel
E-mail
Despatched

:
:
:
:

Peter Moore
020 7527 3252
democracy@islington.gov.uk
8 November 2021

Membership

Substitute Members

Councillors:
Councillor Clare Jeapes (Chair)
Councillor Jenny Kay (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Jilani Chowdhury
Councillor Tricia Clarke
Councillor Osh Gantly
Councillor Phil Graham
Councillor Sara Hyde
Councillor Martin Klute

Substitutes:
Councillor Gary Heather
Councillor Bashir Ibrahim
Councillor Anjna Khurana
Councillor Dave Poyser
Councillor John Woolf

Co-opted Member:

Substitutes:

Quorum: is 4 Councillors

1

A.

Formal Matters

1.

Introductions

2.

Apologies for Absence

3.

Declaration of Substitute Members

4.

Declarations of Interest

Page

If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business:
 if it is not yet on the council’s register, you must declare both the
existence and details of it at the start of the meeting or when it
becomes apparent;
 you may choose to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest that is
already in the register in the interests of openness and transparency.
In both the above cases, you must leave the room without participating in
discussion of the item.
If you have a personal interest in an item of business and you intend to speak
or vote on the item you must declare both the existence and details of it at the
start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent but you may participate in
the discussion and vote on the item.
*(a)Employment, etc - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation
carried on for profit or gain.
(b)Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of your
expenses in carrying out
duties as a member, or of your election; including from a trade union.
(c)Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between you
or your partner (or a body
in which one of you has a beneficial interest) and the council.
(d)Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area.
(e)Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or
longer.
(f)Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in
which you or your partner have
a beneficial interest.
(g)Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a
place of business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the
securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of
that body or of any one class of its issued share capital.
This applies to all members present at the meeting.

5.

Minutes of the previous meeting

6.

Chair's Report

1-6

2

7.

Public Questions
For members of the public to ask questions relating to any subject on the
meeting agenda under Procedure Rule 70.5. Alternatively, the Chair may
opt to accept questions from the public during the discussion on each
agenda item.

8.

Health and Wellbeing Board Update - if any

B.

Items for Decision/Discussion

Page

9.

Healthwatch Islington

7 - 34

10.

Executive Member Annual Report/Annual Report - To follow

11.

Local Account For information

35 - 54

12.

COVID 19 Update - Verbal

55 - 56

13.

Scrutiny Review Health Inequalities - witness evidence

57 - 84

14.

Performance report - Quarter 1

85 106

15.

Work Programme 2021/22

107 110

C.

Urgent non-exempt items (if any)
Any non-exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered
urgently by reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will
be agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes.

D.

Exclusion of Press and Public
To consider whether, in view of the nature of the remaining items on the
agenda, it is likely to involve the disclosure of exempt or confidential
information within the terms of the Access to Information Procedure
Rules in the Constitution and, if so, whether to exclude the press and
public during discussion thereof.

E.

Confidential / Exempt Items

F.

Urgent Exempt Items (if any)

Page

3

Any exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently
by reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will be
agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes.
The next meeting of the Health and Care Scrutiny Committee will be on 16 December
2021
Please note all committee agendas, reports and minutes are available on the
council's website:
www.democracy.islington.gov.uk
WEBCASTING NOTICE
This meeting will be filmed by the Council for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the Council’s
website. The whole of the meeting will be filmed, except where there are confidential or exempt
items, and the footage will be on the website for 12 months. A copy of it will also be retained in
accordance with the Council’s data retention policy.
If you participate in the meeting you will be deemed by the Council to have consented to being
filmed. By entering the Council Chamber you are also consenting to being filmed and to the
possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. If
you do not wish to have your image captured you should sit in the public gallery area, overlooking
the Chamber.
In addition, the Council is obliged by law to allow members of the public to take photographs, film,
audio-record, and report on the proceedings at public meetings. The Council will only seek to
prevent this should it be undertaken in a disruptive or otherwise inappropriate manner.
If you have any queries regarding webcasting or the recording of meetings by the public, please
contact Democratic Services on democracy@islington.gov.uk

4

Agenda Item 5
London Borough of Islington
Health and Care Scrutiny Committee - Monday, 4 October 2021
Minutes of the meeting of the Health and Care Scrutiny Committee held on Monday, 4
October 2021 at 7.30 pm.
Present:

Councillors:

Jeapes (Chair), Kay (Vice-Chair), Chowdhury,
Clarke, Gantly, Graham and Klute

Also
Present:

Councillor:

Lukes

Councillor Clare Jeapes in the Chair
289

INTRODUCTIONS (ITEM NO. 1)
The Chair introduced Members and officers to the meeting

290

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (ITEM NO. 2)
Councillor Hyde and Councillor Turan – Executive Member Health and Adult Social
Care

291

DECLARATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (ITEM NO. 3)
Councillor Poyser stated that he was substituting for Councillor Hyde

292

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (ITEM NO. 4)
None

293

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (ITEM NO. 5)
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 26 July 2021 be confirmed
and the Chair be authorised to sign them

294

CHAIR'S REPORT (ITEM NO. 6)

295

PUBLIC QUESTIONS (ITEM NO. 7)
The Chair outlined the procedure for Public questions and that any questions should
be submitted to the Chair or the Clerk following the meeting for response

296

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD UPDATE - IF ANY (ITEM NO. 8)
None

297

CAMDEN AND ISLINGTON MENTAL HEALTH PERFORMANCE UPDATE
(ITEM NO. 9)
Tafadzwa Mugwaga, Director of Quality and Performance, Camden and Islington
Mental Health Trust and representatives of the Trust, Emily Van de Pol, Dr. Rena
Rashid and Darren Summers were also present, and outlined the report. During
consideration of the report the following main points were made –

1

Page 1

Health and Care Scrutiny Committee - 4 October 2021



















Demand for services increased because of social restrictions imposed during
the pandemic
Community teams assessed people with psychosis and complex emotional
needs and ensured those most at risk were regularly contacted
Learning Disabilities Team continued to work face to face with service users
following COVID infection control measures
Service reorientated to ensure a quick response
Staff safety and well-being has been a priority during the pandemic
Noted complaints about the service reduced
Noted quality improvements and priorities for the current year
Mental Health transformation – the community services transformation
programme will change the way that community mental health services are
delivered and accessed. New neighbourhood health services will be rolled out
by 2024 as part of the biggest expansion of community mental health care in
NHS history. The new model has been co-produced with patients, residents
and partners in Camden and Islington. Transforming mental health care will
take time
Noted the St.Pancras transformation programme redevelopment proposals
A Member referred to the fact that in future reports it would be useful if the
figures for low harm incidents were separated out from the figures
Noted that training was taking place for incidents that happen in the home
Noted the proposals for earlier intervention and that investment was needed to
resource this and that work is also taking place with partners, such as Age UK
and Black Minds on a more co-ordinated approach. The mental health
transformation programme would assist in this. Work is also taking place with
GP’s
Reference was made to the fact that it had been difficult for staff during and
post the pandemic and that staff did have a digital platform that they could
access for assistance
Noted that there were also a number of centres such as the Drayton Park
crisis house where there is a walk in centre and chat facility to assess if
support is needed
Noted that the Trust were stressing to staff the importance of vaccinations and
were making access to vaccinations as easy as possible
Work is taking place with LBI colleagues to ensure services are as accessible
to residents and that there is a regular meeting of the Mental Health
Partnership group to assist in this

The Chair thanked Camden and Islington Trust for attending

298

COVID 19 UPDATE (ITEM NO. 10)
Jonathan O’Sullivan, Director of Public Health and John Everson and Russell Jones
Adult Social Services were present and outlined the presentations, copies interleaved
Councillor Sue Lukes, Executive Member Community Safety and responsible for
pandemic response was also present
During consideration of the presentations the following main points were made –


Adult Social Services – the majority of staff employed in care homes, as well
as in LBI ASC department will have been vaccinated by the date set down by
the time of the deadline set by Government

2

Page 2

Health and Care Scrutiny Committee - 4 October 2021


















Care homes – there has been high rates of full vaccination coverage with
further increases expected. No provider expressed any business continuity
concerns about impact on recruitment to date
Work on implementation of mandatory vaccination builds on long-standing
work undertaken within the department and with local providers to support
vaccination uptake for social care staff
Homes and Domiciliary care – no new deaths since start of February,
decrease in symptomatic residents, staffing levels in OAP care homes have
remained stable
Mental Health and Learning Disabilities Care Homes – there have no COVID
related deaths in mental health disabilities care homes and staffing levels
remain stable
Domiciliary care – small number of residents who have been confirmed with
COVID or who have been COVID symptomatic. No COVID reported deaths
reported from commissioners. After some initial workforce challenges in the
sector staffing levels have stabilised and there is capacity, and work is taking
place with providers to ensure as many staff continue to be vaccinated as
possible
Home sector levels – increase in care home resident cases in December
2020/January 2021 and likely due to increased rates in community
transmission. Since February 2021 there have been very few cases which
have been asymptomtic, and currently no resident deaths since the start of
February
Public Health – variation in infection rates by ethnic group over the Summer.
Vaccinations have largely prevented serious illness needing hospital
admission. Most admissions were in younger age groups, and after many
months of no reported deaths this increased by 10 over August/September
making a total of 375
As of 22 September 154k of adults have had their first vaccination and 137k
their second. This has slowed and residents from black communities are
significantly less likely to have been vaccinated. Preparations are in place for
12-15 year old school based vaccinations and booster programmes, plus
expanded flu vaccination roll out. The growth in infections has been largely
driven by young people. Noted that the booster third jab programme would
also be starting shortly and 4 GP hubs and 10/11 pharmacies across the
borough would be administering these
Islington COVID infection rate is amongst lowest in London
The three wards with lowest vaccination rates are likely to be affected by the
larger student populations in these wards. Focus on supporting and
vaccinating people in excluded and most vulnerable groups
Noted that analysis had shown that deaths amongst black Asian and the black
population were higher than other groups, and that it is hoped that vaccination
rates could improve amongst these groups where they had not been
vaccinated
A Member referred to a recent report on long COVID in children and enquired
what was being done on this. The Director of Public Health stated that he was
not aware of this report but he would look into this

The Chair thanked Councillors Lukes, Jonathan O’Sullivan, John Everson and
Russell Jones for attending

3

Page 3

Health and Care Scrutiny Committee - 4 October 2021

299

SCRUTINY REVIEW HEALTH INEQUALITIES - SID/WITNESS
EVIDENCE ON MENTAL HEALTH (ITEM NO. 11)
Jill Britten, Strategic Commissioning and Investment and Sue Hogarth, Public Health
were in attendance, and made a presentation to the Committee, copy interleaved
During consideration of the presentation the following main points were made –












Islington has one of the highest level of mental health needs in the country,
and this is reflected in high levels of diagnosed conditions. Almost one in six
adults in Islington are diagnosed with a common mental health illness and
women accounted for 61% of diagnoses. Middle aged adults are more likely to
have a common mental illness and white British and white Irish followed by
White and Black Caribbean ethnic groups have a higher prevalence compared
to the Islington average. Islington has a higher prevalence of serious mental
illness (SMI) (2018) figures, than London and England. Black and mixed ethnic
white ethnic/black Caribbean ethnic groups have the highest prevalence of
SMI. All groups experience mental health conditions, but prevalence rise
significantly in groups experiencing deprivation, disadvantage and
discrimination
Impact of COVID 19 on mental health and wellbeing has affected all ages and
will continue to do so, some issues apply to all ages, and those with drug and
alcohol issues. Large national surveys have found higher numbers of people
experiencing anxiety and depression and social isolation is more widespread
Modelling and needs assessment – young people are worried about
education, finances and future. Parents are concerned about children’s mental
health and wellbeing and women more worried than men. More BAME
residents reported worries about COVID 19, and people not in paid work have
poorer mental health than the full time employed. Mental health had
deteriorated somewhat for LGBTQ residents, and there was a gap in services
for people with learning disabilities. Unpaid carers have suffered anxiety about
loss of available support. People who have had severe COVID 19 are at risk of
anxiety and depression, especially health care professionals
Many Islington residents have tried to adapt to cope with the pandemic most
commonly by spending more time with family and friends. For those who need
further help there are many services and community support structures for
example SHINE, Parks for Help, Financial and Debt advice, in work support,
food provision, social and community assistance, healthcare services, and
psychology groups
Additional activities as a result of the pandemic included – ensuring that the
Council has a good understanding of the issues, ensuring a system wide
strategic response, service and training developments, children, young people
and families
Clinical support changes at early stage of pandemic – NCL CCG worked to
bring forward Crisis Team expansion, acute hospital psychiatric liaison, home
treatment and community response, resulting in 24/7 crisis cover across NCL
Specialist services and teams who can respond in a crisis. Increased support
for young people with autism/Learning Difficulties and challenging behaviour.
Increased support with schools, bereavement, mental health, first aid training
for CYP workforce. As with all services there was an expansion of remote
working and digital solutions, but continuation with face to face services for the
most at risk or excluded. KOOTH mental health app has seen increased take
up
Crisis services changed considerably as there was a strong desire to reduce
A&E attendance, a new urgent care Assessment and Treatment centre
opened at St.Pancras to relieve A&E departments, crisis recovery teams
increased capacity to treat more people at home, i COPE changed to remote
4

Page 4

Health and Care Scrutiny Committee - 4 October 2021


















working and introducing 30 minute emotional well-being sessions for all new
referrals within 48 hours of referral. Also i COPE offering 3 session short
treatment for COVID psychological distress and bereavement and LBI also
increases its VCS bereavement offer to match this. Community based services
such as Islington MIND moved to remote working offering telephone and video
chat support etc.
Most services adapted to offer their interventions remotely or provide a mixed
model. Some people preferred this however some services have reopened
buildings, with social distancing in place
Practice based mental health provided by Camden and Islington – a team of
consultants, nurses and psychologists that work alongside GP’s and other
primary care health professionals within practices. Offers mental health
expertise, advice, training and consultation to GP’s, and practice staff and
sees patients for comprehensive medical assessment. Practice based mental
health referrals have returned to pre-COVID levels
i COPE – Offers mainly cognitive behavioural therapy for a range of common
mental health problems, alongside adapted therapy options for people living
with long term physical health conditions or medically unexplained symptoms.
The service has seen an increase in clinical complexity or people
Crisis teams provided by Camden and Islington – teams operate 24/7 and
undertake rapid assessment in the community for urgent and emergency
referrals, and support crises at home. Black communities and White Irish
people are likely to be seen in crisis than other ethnic groups, and this links to
over representation in secondary care bed use amongst these groups. In
response to a question as to why White Irish were over represented it was
stated that this could be generational and linked to social isolation issues
In response to a statement that many BAME residents did not want to admit to
mental health problems due to stigma in the community it was stated that work
is taking place with community organisations to support counselling, including
language counselling, around mental health and work is also taking place with
Healthwatch in this regard. The Mental Health Transformation programme
would also address this
Islington Recovery Pathway provided by Islington MIND – Islington’s main
VCS mental health services operating in 3 locations across the borough. The
services provide a range of practical and emotional support. Overall the
number of people engaged with the service has increased, however new
referrals are generally lower than pre-pandemic levels with the exception of
LGBTQ residents
Enhanced bereavement support – bereavement support training for services
engaging with the Public, and increased capacity from existing
counselling/bereavement providers. Bereavement service provided by the
Accept service offers up to 10 weeks support for adults living in Islington
and/or registered with a GP in Islington. This service is important for people
who have experienced the death of a family member, relative or another
important person in their life
Public Health England Prevention and Promotion fund for better mental health
forms part of the Government’s Mental Health Action recovery plan 2021/22 to
ensure the mental health aspects of COVID are rapidly addressed and
allocated to top 40 most deprived boroughs. There is a long list of criteria as to
what and what cannot be funded, and money needs to be spent and outcomes
delivered in this financial year
Drawing on the rapid needs assessment and overview of service patterns and
needs, investment through this grant was targeted to younger age groups, and
addressing protective and risk factors for adults, both with a cross cutting
focus on Black Asian and other ethnic minority communities
5

Page 5

Health and Care Scrutiny Committee - 4 October 2021





A Member stated that she felt the term well-being service was beneficial to
young people due to the stigma around mental health. Noted that funding was
available for looking at behavioural issues in schools
The view was expressed that there needed to be improved signposting of
services on the website and it was stated that this was being addressed in
order to provide a more streamlined version with better signposting to services
A Member referred to the a recent issue that had been raised in relation to
CAMHS services in some schools not being given a link person, and it was
stated that this would be investigated
Reference was made to some cases where care in the community did not
appear to be working satisfactorily, and whilst care in the community generally
worked well, there was some isolated case where residents with mental health
problems were causing distress to neighbours. It was stated that if these
cases were reported to Public Health following the meeting the issues could
be investigated. It was noted that a secure, safe environment to live was a
prerequisite for a person with mental health issues

RESOLVED:
(a) That the scrutiny initiation document be approved, subject to the addition of
the words ‘ Progress on the recommendations of the Health Inequalities Public
Health report 2019/20, in the scope of the review
(b) That Councillor Kay be informed of the situation regarding CAMHS services in
schools referred to above
The Chair thanked Jill Britten and Sue Hogarth for their presentation

300

WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22 (ITEM NO. 12)
RESOLVED;
That the report be noted

MEETING CLOSED AT 9.40 p.m.

Chair

6

Page 6

Update and work planning

Health and Care Scrutiny, November 2021

Agenda Item 9

Page 7

Healthwatch Islington

Our vision
Improved health & social care outcomes for all local residents
• Part of a national network (in which we lead on impact measurement)
Page 8

• Part funded by LBI to fulfil statutory functions of Health and Social Care Act
2013 (currently going through a procurement process):
• Gather and report views on health and social care,
• Provide people with information on services,
• Collaborative, ‘critical friend’ approach, working in partnership wherever we
can.

Our work in 2020/21
• Covid misinformation - 2,189 residents
• 15,000+ visits to Covid-related information on our website
Page 9

• (Less) business as usual - 781 people shared their experiences of health and
social care.

• 922 people accessed the Healthwatch advice and information service with questions
about local support
• Vaccination programme, Covid and flu
• Diversity in the Carers Services Review
• 200 people shared their views of remote and online health appointments
(LongTermPlan)
• 209 referrals into our digital support services.

Our partnerships

Page 10

Diverse Communities Health Voices
• Arachne, Community Language Support Services, Disability
Action in Isington, Eritrean Community in the UK, Imece,
Islington Bangladesh Association, Islington Somali
Community, Jannaty, Kurdish and Middle Eastern Women’s
Organisation, Latin American Women’s Rights Service.
• Since 2014 we’ve raised around £450,000 for grass-roots
partners (our own turnover is around £270,000 per year)

Page 11

“We have been enabled to access funding opportunities through the
partnership which have been pivotal in the survival of our
organisation. Healthwatch has also provided opportunities for our
staff to update their knowledge and skills. This has been particularly
true during the pandemic where Healthwatch linked our organisation
into multiple streams of current and up-to-date information,
especially significant in a time of great misinformation and fear.”
- Arachne Greek Cypriot Women’s Group

Our digital inclusion work

Page 12

2021-22

Page 13

•
•
•
•

Access to health care broadly
Dentistry
Long Covid
Patient Transport – working with GPs, supported
accommodation, care homes and commissioners
• Digital Inclusion Strategy
• Impact of Covid Survey (public health)

Addressing health inequality
•
Page 14

•
•
•

Challenging Inequality Workstream of the Fairer
Together Partnership Board
All Age Mental Health Partnership Board
Mental health funding, £64,000 from Public Health
England for grass-roots support
Working with VAI to bring smaller VCS input to the
Integrated Care System

On equal terms
Healthwatch Islington Annual Report 2020-21

Page 15

2

Then and now | Healthwatch Islington | Annual Report 2020-21

Contents
Message from our Chair

3

About us

5

Highlights from our year

6

Digital support: Then and now

7

Equal access for all: Then and now

9

Responding to COVID-19

11

Volunteers

13

Finances

15

Next steps & thank you

16

Page 16

Then and now | Healthwatch Islington | Annual Report 2020-21

3

Message from our Chair
During the pandemic we’ve adapted how we work and supported our partners
to do the same. We are committed to engaging our residents using new ways,
and old ways, to safely hear your views and help you access services.
Responding to the pandemic:
We know many residents continue to experience very difficult times during the current crisis and that
inequalities have exacerbated the impacts. We have focused on providing residents with good quality
information about Coronavirus, access to services, and vaccinations. We’ve hosted a range of events
attended by over 450 residents and voluntary sector partners. We’re looking at the data on who attended
so we know who we missed and who we need to work harder to reach out to. We’ve offered phone-based
signposting advice and information support to over 240 residents. In addition, we worked with our Diverse
Communities Health Voice partners to provide reliable information about the pandemic to 680 residents
from communities whose first language is not English.

Digital inclusion:
We’ve adapted our digital inclusion support, offering one-to-one and group sessions remotely to over 130
people. We continue to work with our partners to ensure this work has reach. We also ran several
workshops for voluntary sector colleagues to help them to move services online and support residents to
access them. Our safeguarding framework for remote digital support has received recognition from Digital
Unite and Good Things Foundation, and our Digital Champion volunteer David Mallory won Islington
Volunteer of the Year.

Whilst we recognise that digital is not for everyone, we are
keen to work with borough partners to ensure that help is
made available to those who are interested but need support
to get online.
We’ve been researching the barriers to getting online. Many residents lack skills and confidence and we
are supporting them to access well-being tools, understand internet safety, and to attend our virtual
health information workshops. We also recognise that digital is not for everyone, and have worked with
Healthwatch colleagues in Brighton, Healthwatch England and the Consultation Institute to develop
engagement tools for working with residents who are not online.
We’ve also evaluated Maya Centre’s remote therapy services, gathering and analysing feedback from
staff and service users on their experiences of virtual counselling during the pandemic. We focused on
their person-centred approach to evolving their offer. If your organisation would like to commission our
evaluation service, contact our Chief Executive.

Page 17

Then and now | Healthwatch Islington | Annual Report 2020-21

4

Equal Access for all:
We continue to champion the need for constant review of the equity of access to mental health provision.
We were pleased to see Camden and Islington Public Health’s Needs Assessment making clear
requirements/ and taking actions to meet the needs of our diverse community. We are also bringing
together partners from across a range of sectors; education, social care and health, to share good practice
in making services welcoming to all and to improve the robustness of service design so that residents’
diverse needs are better reflected in the design and planning process.

Building partnerships:
We welcomed a new partner, Disability Action in Islington, to our Diverse Communities Health Voice
partnership. We’ve raised £75,000 for partners this year alone, helping us reach widely into our community
through people trusted by local residents. This brings the total amount we have raised for local
organisations to over £290,000, no mean feat for an organisation of our size.
We thank all of the residents and workers who’ve kept us all going through this challenging time, our
funders, and particular thanks to Healthwatch Islington’s volunteer team and our dedicated staff.

Jana Witt, Chair of Healthwatch Islington

Share your views with us
If you have a query about a health and social care service, or need
help with where you can go to access further support, get in touch.
Don’t struggle alone. Healthwatch is here for you.
www.healthwatchislington.co.uk
07538 764436

Page 18

info@healthwatchislington.co.uk

5

Then and now | Healthwatch Islington | Annual Report 2020-21

About us
Here to make health and care better

We are the independent champion for people who use health and social care
services in Islington. We’re here to find out what matters to people and help
make sure your views shape the support you need, by sharing these views
with those who have the power to make change happen.

Helping you to find the information you need

We help people find the information they need about services in their area. This has been vital
during the pandemic with the ever-changing environment and restrictions limiting people’s access
to health and social care services.

Our goals

you to
1 Supporting
have your say

a high
2 Providing
quality service

We want more people to get
the information they need to
take control of their health
and care, make informed
decisions and shape the
services that support them.

We want everyone who
shares an experience or
seeks advice from us to get a
high quality service and to
understand the difference
their views make.

your views
3 Ensuring
help improve health

& care
We want more services to
use your views to shape the
health and care support you
need today and in the future.

“Thanks so much for organising today’s Flu event. It was really helpful
and the speaker gave the information in such a pleasant way. You take
care of these events so efficiently. We are privileged in Islington to have
such a proactive, educational and supportive Healthwatch group.”
Feedback from Wendy, a resident who attended one of the Flu Vaccination events we hosted
in September 2020

Page 19

Then and now | Healthwatch Islington | Annual Report 2020-21

6

Highlights from our year
Find out about our resources and how we have engaged and supported
people in 2020-21.

Reaching out

We heard from

781 people

this year about their experiences of health and social care.
We provided advice and information to

922 people

this year. We worked with partner organisations to reach more residents.

Responding to the pandemic

We engaged with and supported

2,189 people

with issues related to the COVID-19 pandemic this year.

15,000 visits

to Covid-related information articles on our website.

Making a difference to care
We published

5 reports

about the improvements people would like to see to health and social care
services.

10 partner organisations

sharing experiences of care from residents that are less able to get their
voices heard.

Health and care that works for you

12 volunteers

helped us to carry out our work. 9 volunteers were Digital Champions and 3
were researchers.

We employ 5 staff
3 of whom are full time.
We received

£156,100 in funding
from our local authority in 2020-21.

Page 20

Then and now | Healthwatch Islington | Annual Report 2020-21

7

Then and now: from digital
exclusion to inclusion
Then: changing attitudes towards digital
700 local people have taken part in our Log On digital support programme since April 2017.
Residents who felt the internet was ‘not for them’ are now going online to manage their health,
speak to their grandchildren, or see the news in their mother tongue.
We worked in partnership with community organisations supporting residents who were older, had existing
health conditions, and/or were from communities whose first language was not English. One organisation
supporting older Greek speaking residents who were particularly digitally excluded describes the impact. “It
felt like we were scratching at the tip of an iceberg... there was definitely a shift in the attitude of the
participants. It was no longer a blank ‘No’ to digital technology... they are definitely more open to it.”
This year we surveyed 59 digitally excluded residents from these groups. In the past many would have
shown little interest in going online, but now most told us they were keen to be supported to learn new
digital skills. 49 said they would like to use WhatsApp, Facetime or Zoom to keep in touch with friends and
family and 45 said they would be happy to learn how to book a GP appointment online.
The programme has also helped many of the organisations involved to build their own digital capacity and
engage clients more effectively. For example, some of our partners now use WhatsApp to reach residents
instead of using leaflets. By giving our partner organisations a head start with digital, we helped to make
them more resilient when the pandemic struck, and better able to adapt to offering activities online.

Page 21

Then and now | Healthwatch Islington | Annual Report 2020-21

8

Now: going digital during the pandemic
Healthwatch won funding from National Lottery Awards For All to provide digital training and
support to local voluntary organisations. We helped them to move online to better support their
volunteers and the communities they serve whilst social distancing measures are in place.
One such organisation is Jannaty Women’s Social Society, based in Finsbury Park. We taught staff and
volunteers at Jannaty how to make use of online platforms to support residents. We trained them in the use
of screen sharing and break-out rooms, for example, as well as showing them how to share video, audio and
document files with online attendees. As a result they’ve been able to continue to offer wellbeing activities to
their service users. Jannaty have a sewing group who have been meeting to make face coverings to
distribute to local residents. Although the group is no longer able to meet in person, meeting virtually has
meant they can continue to socialise as they work on the masks at home. They come together to stay
connected, and to share progress and discuss techniques that are working well.

It was a very good experience for us to do the Eid party on
Zoom. It was very nice and we learnt a lot. For example, letting
people into the Zoom meeting actually takes a long time. So we
used that learning when we started the sewing classes.”
Using digital platforms to share reliable information about Covid-19
There's a lot of good information available about coronavirus, with advice and guidance provided by the NHS
and government websites. However, if English isn't your first language it has been much harder to get
access to reliable information. This lack has encouraged the spread of misinformation.
•

Healthwatch successfully bid for funding from the London Community Response Fund to work together
with organisations supporting migrant communities in Islington, to help tackle this problem.

•

Our partnership supported 680 residents with a range of issues related to the pandemic, and helped
1,698 local people get access to reliable information about coronavirus in their first language.

•

Information was shared via Zoom, WhatsApp, videos, texts, and email, as well as by more old-fashioned
means, namely phone calls and (socially distanced) face-to-face conversations.

Page 22

Then and now | Healthwatch Islington | Annual Report 2020-21

9

Then and now: challenging
inequality
Then: access to mental health support
We work in a diverse borough and know that some communities are less able to get their voices
heard. Protected characteristics such as age and disability (including mental health problems)
can also impact on residents’ ability to access services. We’re committed to reducing inequality.
In 2017, adults with ADHD told us they were having to wait as long as three years for an assessment, and
were unable to access any of the support they needed in the meantime. We recommended adults in this
position be given access to support groups whilst on the waiting list. Commissioners adopted this change.
Then in 2020, we told commissioners that the needs of established migrant communities in Islington were
not being fully considered by our existing mental health commissioning structures. As a result Healthwatch
and Islington Bangladesh Association were invited to chair the newly created Inequalities Sub-Group of the
Mental Health Partnership Board to help ensure that these inequalities were addressed.
This year we were delighted when the Mental Health Partnership Board identified the change we had
recommended for ADHD services in 2017 as a service improvement that should be introduced much more
widely. This means patients on waiting lists for assessments from other mental health services will be able to
access support that would not have been available to them previously.

Page 23

Then and now | Healthwatch Islington | Annual Report 2020-21

10

Now: accessing your GP during the pandemic
The arrival of the pandemic has changed the way we access GPs, placing even more pressure on phone
lines and larger reliance on technology at home. We knew that people who weren’t used to going online or
didn’t have access to a computer, including many older residents, could be unfairly disadvantaged. We
asked residents and community organisations supporting vulnerable groups to tell us how the experience of
accessing a GP had changed. Over 200 people shared their views by phone and online.
We found that disabled people, people with long term health conditions, and people whose first language
wasn’t English were struggling to get the care they needed. Language issues were a big barrier and these
were made worse because you cannot point or use gestures to communicate over the phone. We learned
that e-consult, the online tool people were asked to use to describe their symptoms and request an
appointment, was particularly off-putting for those who lacked confidence using digital platforms.
•

We worked with our partner organisations to support residents who were digitally excluded. We made a
total of 209 referrals into our digital support services.

•

To support patients who were struggling with the e-consult tool we hosted a training workshop ‘How to
use e-consult to communicate with your GP practice’ . A clinician explained how the tool worked and our
volunteer digital champions walked the 10 participants through the process on their own devices. Further
one to one sessions have enabled residents to embed their learning.

•

Partners organisations supporting residents in sheltered accommodation, and supporting speakers of
languages including Greek, Arabic, Somali, and Tigrinya also attended the training, so they could better
support their tenants and communities to use e-consult. We also produced guidance materials.

I think the event was really accessible. I was able to follow the
step by step approach to complete e-consult, filling the form in
with my own tablet and with my own queries at the same time.
I am not so frightened of it now!”
Penny, digital learner

Sharing patient feedback with key decision makers
•

As a result of people sharing their experiences, we gained a better understanding of the strengths and
weaknesses of remote and online appointments. We have also gained greater insight into the ways in
which a ‘digital first’ approach to accessing GP services can make existing health inequalities worse.

•

We published our findings in the report ‘From digital exclusion to inclusion’. The findings will be shared
more widely at a launch event this summer. Feedback from patients will help commissioners understand
how GP services can be offered most effectively going forward, to ensure that no one gets left behind.

Find out more about our work to reduce inequality > > >
Learn about our Diverse Communities Health Voice partnership
www.healthwatchislington.co.uk/our-partners

Page 24

Then and now | Healthwatch Islington | Annual Report 2020-21

11

Responding to
COVID-19
Healthwatch plays an important role in helping people to get the
information they need, especially through the pandemic. The insight we
collect is shared with both Healthwatch England and local partners to
ensure services are operating as best as possible during the pandemic.
This year we helped 2,189 people by:
• Providing up to date advice on the COVID-19 response locally
• Linking people to reliable up-to-date information in their first language
• Running a programme of online events on key issues of public concern
• Supporting the COVID-19 vaccine roll-out
• Delivering a programme of activities to encourage take-up of flu vaccinations
• Providing an information and signposting service to help people to access the services they need

Equality monitoring data was provided by 918 of the 2,189 people we supported. 765 were female and 153 were male. Of those
who gave their age, 397 were under 50 compared with 494 aged over 50. Many different ethnicities were supported. At least 680
people who provided data belonged to communities represented by our Diverse Communities partners. 1,012 of their adult friends
and family members were engaged indirectly. 89 people who shared ethnicity data described themselves as White British.

Page 25

Then and now | Healthwatch Islington | Annual Report 2020-21

12

Top four issues bringing people to our advice pages:

34% for Cleaning the Home Safely

33% for Vaccines

5% for Dentistry

4% for Shielding

COVID-19 vaccine information

We produced a fact sheet on the coronavirus
vaccine to support the vaccine roll-out in February
2021. As well as being shared with the public, this
resource was used by statutory and voluntary
sector partners across the borough. Islington
Council specifically identified Healthwatch as a
trusted information source in the film they
produced to encourage residents to have the jab.

• We had over 15,000 visits to Covid-related

information articles on our website this year.

• We had over 5,000 visits to our COVID-19

vaccination information resources in February
and March alone.

Contact us to get the information you need
If you have a query about a health and social care service, or need help
with where you can go to access further support, get in touch. Don’t
struggle alone. Healthwatch is here for you.

www.healthwatchislington.co.uk
07538 764436
info@healthwatchislington.co.uk

Page 26

Then and now | Healthwatch Islington | Annual Report 2020-21

13

Volunteers
12 volunteers helped us with our work this year. Some of our regular
volunteers weren’t able to participate, but will return when it is again
appropriate to carry out face to face activity. This year our volunteers:
• Helped people have their say from home.
• Helped residents to develop their digital skills, offering support over the telephone and online.
• Supported people to access GP services by taking them through the e-consult platform, step by step.
• Carried out research into mental health provision, and the accessibility of information about online
services

“I’ve worked with several volunteer organisations over the years and
Healthwatch Islington’s support is outstanding, especially the training
prior to activities.”
Feedback from volunteer

Page 27

Then and now | Healthwatch Islington | Annual Report 2020-21

14

Digital Champion - David
David helps residents who are nervous about IT to
recognise that they do indeed have the skills they
need to get online. He won the borough's
‘Volunteer of the Year’ award in December 2020.
Philippa, who runs our digital inclusion programme,
spoke glowingly of David’s contribution:
“His technical knowledge around IT is immense yet
he is able to explain and support people at a pace
and with language they understand. He could not
be a more deserving winner of this award.”

Digital Champion - Keith
“Using the internet is a key life skill and can give
participants access to so many other things that
can make their quality of life better. There’s much
more to it than just accessing healthcare services,
that’s a small part of people’s lives. They can also
improve their well-being by having greater contact
with friends, hobbies and all sorts of information.”
Keith has also helped the staff team improve how
we administer our digital programme, introducing
us to new online tools and processes.

Researcher - Geraldine
During the pandemic we have been asked to
access health services remotely. Geraldine
conducted research into the accessibility of
information about online services. She analysed
the websites of 32 NHS General Practices in
Islington.
“My research made me more aware of the barriers
that are experienced by many patients who are not
frequent or confident website users. There should
be more user testing of these websites, involving
people of different ages, languages, and IT skills.”

Volunteer with us
Are you feeling inspired? We are always on the lookout for new
volunteers. If you are interested in volunteering, please get in touch.

www.healthwatchislington.co.uk/volunteer
07538 764457
jennifer.kent@healthwatchislington.co.uk

Page 28

Then and now | Healthwatch Islington | Annual Report 2020-21

15

Finances
To help us carry out our work we receive funding from our local authority under the
Health and Social Care Act 2012.

Income
Funding received
from local authority
Additional funding
£137,182

Total income
£293,282

£156,100

Expenditure
£24,378

Staff costs
Operational costs
Support and
administration

£78,232

Total expenditure
£276,348

£173,738

Page 29

Then and now | Healthwatch Islington | Annual Report 2020-21

16

Next steps & thank you
Top three priorities for 2021-22
• Access to non-Covid related healthcare

• Covid vaccinations and Long Covid
• Challenging inequalities

Next steps

Our partners, volunteers and staff have been working exceptionally hard throughout the year to maintain
services during the pandemic. We switched to online and phone-based delivery in March 2020 and whilst
we miss seeing everyone face-to-face, we’ve learned a lot and will be adopting some more virtual methods
in to our business-as-usual. We recruited two new trustees in April 2020 who we are yet to meet in person
but who have already made a great contribution to our work.

COVID-19 has led to many changes to health
and care services. As services return to
something like ‘normal’ it will be our role to
help services to understand the impact that
these changes are having in the wider
community.
Some of the major changes we’ve seen to health and care services include non-urgent treatment being
postponed, a reduction in face-to-face appointments, and care homes limiting public access. As a
member of the Fairer Together Borough Partnership, we will champion residents’ views and have
committed to work with statutory and community colleagues to make Islington a fairer place for all.
In particular we will be talking to residents about access to non-Covid related healthcare, as well as
providing information about Covid vaccinations and Long Covid. We will continue to deliver our digital
inclusion work thanks to additional funding from Cloudesley, Clarion, Awards for all, and our Clinical
Commissioning Group. If you know a resident who needs support to get online but can’t afford it, then
put them in touch.
Many thanks to partners, colleagues, volunteers and funders for all your ongoing support.

Page 30

Emma Whitby, Healthwatch Islington Chief Executive

Then and now | Healthwatch Islington | Annual Report 2020-21

17

Statutory statements
About us
Healthwatch Islington, 6-9 Manor Gardens, London N7 6LA
Healthwatch Islington uses the Healthwatch Trademark when undertaking our statutory activities as covered
by the licence agreement.

The way we work
Involvement of volunteers and lay people in our governance and decision-making.
Our Healthwatch board consists of seven members who work on a voluntary basis to provide direction,
oversight and scrutiny to our activities. Our board ensures that decisions about priority areas of work reflect
the concerns and interests of our diverse local community. Through 2020/21 the board met six times and
made decisions on matters such as our fundraising strategy, and the allocation of our budget.
We ensure wider public involvement in deciding our work priorities. For example, we use insight from
information and signposting enquiries, from our community research, and from comments that are
submitted via our website. We also consult with our Diverse Communities Health Voice partners to ensure
that our priorities are informed by the experiences of residents that these organisations represent, so that
inequalities are addressed.

Page 31

Then and now | Healthwatch Islington | Annual Report 2020-21

18

Methods and systems used across the year’s work to obtain people’s views
and experience.
We use a wide range of approaches to ensure that as many people as possible have the opportunity to
provide us with insight about their experience of health and care services. During 2020/21 we have been
available by phone, by email, provided a web-form on our website, designed and delivered phone and
web-based surveys, attended virtual meetings of community groups and forums, provided our own virtual
activities and engaged with the public through social media.
We are committed to taking additional steps to ensure we obtain the views of people from diverse
backgrounds who are often not heard by health and care decision makers. We have done this by
continuing to work with our Diverse Communities Health Voice partners. This year we welcomed Disability
Action in Islington to the partnership, enabling us to better represent the views of disabled residents.

2020-21 priorities
Project / activity area

What we achieved

Better access to information about health and
care services – supporting residents to use their
devices and navigate the internet

Together with our partner organisations, we
made a total of 209 referrals into our digital
support services.

Non-emergency patient transport services –
making eligibility criteria more transparent

Eligibility criteria were suspended due to the
pandemic. Individuals who were having difficulty
accessing transport received signposting support
from our advice and information service.

Mental health support – helping services meet the
needs of migrant communities

As a result of our work, commissioners have
asked all GPs to actively support residents who
don’t have English as a first language through the
referral process for mental health support, rather
than expecting them to self-refer.

Information workshops, particularly on topics
relevant to the pandemic

549 people attended our virtual events, with a
wide range of specialists sharing their expertise.
Feedback was very positive. Topics chosen
reflected concerns shared with us by residents.

Improving access to primary care
The impact on services from COVID-19

We published 3 reports sharing feedback from the
community on the impact of the pandemic and on
access to health services. This work is ongoing
and we continue to collect and share feedback.

Responses to recommendations and requests
There were no providers who failed to respond to requests for information or recommendations. This
year, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, we did not make use of our Enter and View powers. Consequently,
no recommendations or other actions resulted from this area of activity. There were no issues or
recommendations escalated by our Healthwatch to the Healthwatch England Committee and so no
resulting special reviews or investigations.

Health and Wellbeing Board
We are represented on the Islington Health and Wellbeing Board by Emma Whitby, our Chief Executive.
We shared our work plan for the coming year at the March 2021 meeting.

Page 32

Healthwatch Islington
6 – 9 Manor Gardens
London
N7 6LA
www.healthwatchislington.co.uk
e: info@healthwatchislington.co.uk

@HWIslington
Facebook.com/HWIslington
Instagram.com/hwislington
LinkedIn.com/company/healthwatch-islington

Page 33

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
Adult Social Care
222 Upper Street, Islington, London, N1 1XR
Report of: the Director of Adult Social Care
Meeting of:

Date:

Ward(s):

Health and Care Scrutiny Committee

16 November 2021

N/A

Delete as appropriate

Non-exempt

1.

Synopsis

1.1

The Local Account is an annual report for Islington residents. The report provides information
about how we are serving residents, our achievements, challenges, and future plans.

1.2

This report sets out the context for and key messages of the Adult Social Care Local Account
for 2019/20 and 2020/21.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

It is recommended that Scrutiny Committee note the content of the Local Account.

3.

Background

3.1

It is good practice for local authorities to produce an ASC Local Account on an annual basis to:
•
•
•
•

3.2

Highlight the work and achievements of the Adult Social Care Department and partners;
Outline how the Adult Social Care budget has been spent;
Summarise feedback from resident surveys; and
Set out future aims, work, and priorities.

The onset of the COVID-19 pandemic in March 2020 delayed the production of the Islington
2019/20 Local Account. As a result, officers have developed a two-year account covering
2019/20 and 2020/21. Officers from across Adult Social Care, Strategic Commissioning and
Investment, Performance, and Finance have all contributed to the development of the report.

Page 35

Page 1 of 3

3.3

The Local Account 2019/20 2020/21 highlights that:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

4.
4.1

Adult Social Care encompasses a wide variety of services delivered by the Council and by
commissioned partners.
Adult Social Care represents a significant investment for the Council and is an integral
part of meeting the Council’s strategic priorities.
Adult Social Care strive to work with people, to empower them, and to work in a
strengths-based way to support people to live well – this has benefits for residents as well
as the health and care system.
Many of the people we support are positive about their experiences but we are striving to
improve services for all.
Overall spend on Adult Social Care has increased with an increase of spend on support to
keep people at home for longer. The department faces significant financial challenges in
the years to come.
Over the last two years, we have seen increases in demand and activity across Adult
Social Care and are supporting residents with increasingly complex needs.
In a climate of significant uncertainty, disruption, and with huge challenges Adult Social
Care have continued to deliver a good quality service, drive improvements, and made key
contributions to the Council COVID response.
The pandemic has highlighted and exacerbated a range of pre-existing challenges –
which are expected to continue into 2021/22 – officers have responded by working
differently, more innovatively, and by driving transformation.
Moving forward, the Adult Social Care department will continue to work at pace in pursuit
of opportunities to deliver our vision, further transformation, to contribute to key Council
priorities, and to respond to changing legislative requirements and operating
environment.

Implications
Financial Implications:
There are no financial implications arising as a direct result of this report.
Any plans or strategies derived or agreed in relation to this report should use existing available
resources and therefore not create a budget pressure for the Council.

4.2

Legal Implications:
The Care Act 2014 (“CA”), places a duty upon local authorities under s.1 to promote the wellbeing of individuals within its area; this duty extends to physical, mental and emotional well being and applies to adults with care and support, their carer’s, children and young carers.
Section 2 of the CA 2014 places an obligation upon the local authority to provide services,
facilities or resources to prevent and/or reduce care and support needs for adults within its
area.

4.3

Environmental Implications and contribution to achieving a net zero carbon
Islington by 2030:
There are no environmental impacts arising from the development of the Local Account.

Page 36

Page 2 of 3

4.4

Resident Impact Assessment:
The council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of opportunity, and
foster good relations, between those who share a relevant protected characteristic and those
who do not share it (section 149 Equality Act 2010). The council has a duty to have due regard
to the need to remove or minimise disadvantages, take steps to meet needs, in particular steps
to take account of disabled persons' disabilities, and encourage people to participate in public
life. The council must have due regard to the need to tackle prejudice and promote
understanding.
A Resident Impact Assessment has not been completed because these are reports providing
information about performance and services in 2019/20 2020/21.

Appendices
 Adult Social Care Local Account 2019/20 2020/21
Signed by:
Director of Adult Social Care

Date

Report Author: Russell Jones, Acting Senior Commissioning Manager
Tel:
4966
Email:
Russell.Jones@islington.gov.uk
Financial Implications Author: Shakeel Yasin, Head of Finance
Tel: 8929
Email: Shakeel.Yasin@islington.gov.uk
Legal Implications Author:
Tel:
Email:

Stephanie Broomfield, Principal Lawyer
3380
Stephanie.Broomfield@islington.gov.uk

Page 37

Page 3 of 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 39

DRAFT – Islington Adult Social
Care Local Account – 2019/20 and
2020/21
September 2021

Foreword and introduction
This is the Local Account for Islington Adult Social Care Services for 2019/2020 and 2020/2021. It is an
account of what we have done to support people across the borough during the last two years, how we
have invested public money, what the residents and carers we support have fed back to us, and importantly,
what we aim to do in 2021/22.

Page 40

During 20/21, the COVID 19 pandemic presented the health and social care system and our community with
some of its greatest challenges for decades, testing the resilience of partners across Islington. Excellent
partnership working built up over many years has enabled Islington to respond effectively to support our
residents and our residents stepped up to support each other. Our Fairer Together partnership and
Integrated Care Board are good examples of developing partnerships forums. Over the past two years we have
continued to work with our partners including residents, the NHS, care providers, and voluntary sector organisations to
develop and deliver services together.

Cllr Nurullah Turan,
Executive Member for
Health and Social Care

The challenges presented by the COVID 19 pandemic has required us to work differently during 2020/2021 and
has required us to be more innovative about the type, range and style of service delivery. Despite the challenges, we
have been able to progress our Adult Social Care Transformation Programme and the key pillars of service
development have been firmly put in place. Additionally, we launched our Challenging Inequalities work, which
we are continuing to develop at pace.
We would like to thank our colleagues, partners, residents, carers, and communities for their incredible
work and the way they have pulled together to support one another.
We hope you will find the report both interesting and helpful.

John Everson,
Director of
Adult Social Care

About Adult Social Care: an overview
Adult Social Care works to ensure Islington residents can live healthy, fulfilling, and independent lives – connected to their
community and with appropriate care and support as required.
We work with residents who may need support for any number of reasons. Mainly, old age and dementia, physical, sensory and learning
disabilities, mental health problems, and substance misuse. The demand for services is growing as our residents are living longer and there are
more people living with long term condition.

Page 41

Our approach starts with resident’s strengths and abilities and seeks to intervene early to prevent or delay needs increasing.
Care and support offered via Adult Social Care includes help with essential daily activities like eating and washing, or help participating in work or
socialising. We provide support in people’s homes wherever possible to aid our residents’ independence. If that is not possible, we support people to
live in high quality supported housing, residential or nursing homes.
High quality Adult Social Care is a crucial contributor to the Council’s Fairness Agenda – whether due to our work as part of Fairer
Together, the Challenging Inequalities programme, or our contributions to the Community Wealth Building movement as an employer and a
commissioner.
Currently, 3,900
residents access
long-term adult
social care services
in the year in
Islington.

The LBI Adult
Social Care gross
expenditure was
£152.417M in
2020/21

There are 46 Adult
Social Care
providers
registered with the
Care Quality
Commission (CQC)
in Islington.

Adult Social Care
manage a diverse
portfolio of
contracts for over
100 services.

C.600 staff are
directly employed
in the LBI Adult
Social Care
Directorate.

A statutory service
under the Care Act
2014, Mental
Health Acts, and
the Health and
Social Care Act
2012

Adult Social Care represents a significant investment for the Council and is an integral part of meeting the Council’s
strategic priorities

Adult Social Care: our services

Sign language and
interpreting
Day services

Page 42
Criminal justice related
care and support

Healthwatch

Supported housing
and extra care

Occupational
therapy

Reablement

Assistive technology

Advocacy

Safeguarding

Hospital social work

Employment
support

Community inclusion
support

Care homes

Home care

Direct payments
support
Community equipment

Unpaid carers’
support services

Information, advice,
and guidance

Area social work
teams

Daytime
opportunities

Adult Social Care encompasses a wide variety of services delivered by the Council and by commissioned partners

Adult Social Care: in numbers

Page 43

3,955 individuals received a
long-term adult social care
service in they year in 2020/21, a
9% increase from 2019/20

In 2020/21, 2,201 individuals
have been accessing long term
support for over 12 months,
similar to 2019/20.

In 2020/21, 3,173 received
support in the community
during the year, a
12% increase from 2019/20

In 2020/21, 347 individuals
were supported in nursing
homes during the year, a 3%
increase from 2019/20

432 individuals were
supported in residential
homes during 2020/21, a 1%
increase from 2019/20

3,353 safeguarding concerns 1,167 Deprivation of Liberty
4,389 urgent response contacts
Safeguard referrals were made
were raised in 2020/21, 4%
were received in 2020/21, 26%
in 2020/21, similar to 2019/20
more than in 2019/20
more than 2019/20

11,714 access calls
874 carers received support from the
Received in 2020/21, a 18%
Council in 2020/21. 185 new carers reduction compared to 2019/20.
were provided support in 2020/21.
Due to calls going to We are
Islington

87% people were still at home
91 days after discharge from
hospital (2019/20)

27% (619) service users
received direct payment in
2020/21 compared to 28% in
2019/20

Adult Social Care offer a range of support to an increasing range of residents, with growing demand for our services

How we work: our co-produced Adult Social Care principles
We have worked with our staff, service users and carers to develop a set of principles that will
underpin our work in social care.
We will …..
1. Listen to you and involve you in what we do and how we do it
2. Work with you to strengthen your sense of safety, wellbeing and belonging
3. Be clear about the choices you have and the support available to you

Page 44

4. Offer the right support at the right time, based on your strengths and what’s most important to you
5. Improve the quality and consistency of services and celebrate success
6. Help our residents to connect with voluntary and community groups and to continue supporting
and learning from each other

“Person-centred needs to be emphasised; whatever age, whatever setting, independence in the way it works
for you” – Islington resident

We strive to work with people, to empower them, and to work in a strengths-based way to support people to live
well.

Case study: our Adult Social Care principles in action
A good example of the Adult Social Care principles in action is evident in Mr S’s experience…
Who?

Their background

Mr S is an 85 year old who lives in
Islington, near his family.

Mr S was first referred to the Council for re-housing in 2012. Over subsequent years their health sadly
deteriorated which meant they were admitted to hospital multiple times and required care and support.
Their care journey

Page 45

After a hospital admission in 2020, Mr S was discharged home with support from their family and a home care service. Unfortunately Mr S was
admitted to hospital again and his family felt they could no longer provide the care he required. Mr S was initially discharged with 24 hour home
care support but without his family’s input this was not sustainable, and it was agreed that he would move to a nursing home instead.
Mr S’s family expressed regret at this so his social worker supported them to agree alternative arrangements to care for him at home. This
involved the social worker reflecting with the family on theirs’ and Mr S’s strengths, previous challenges, and agreeing how they could work
together with the home care service. To ensure Mr S could be as independent as possible at home, his social worker made arrangements for
Occupational Therapy to provide enabling equipment, like a hoist. As well as supporting Mr S, their social worker put his family in contact with
the Islington Carers Hub, who provide practical support for carers in their caring roles.
Mr S was subsequently discharged from his nursing home back to his home with support from home care and his family.
What worked well?

What was the outcome?

Mr S’s social worker listened to, developed a positive relationship with,
and worked with his family helping them to honestly reflect on and
understand their options for his care, ensuring his best interests were
at the heart of his care journey, and bolstering their strengths by
connecting with local voluntary sector and statutory support.

Mr S was supported to live at home with support proportionate and
appropriate to his needs, in a familiar and positive environment,
maintaining close connections to his loved ones. His family were
happy with the offer, their experience, and felt well-supported in their
caring role. The package of care is sustainable going forward.

Mr S’s experience highlights how Building Strengths for Better Lives benefits residents as well as the system

Adult Social Care: who we work with and what they said
Who we work with
•

•

•

We support around 5,200 Islington residents in the year, this is
approximately 2% of the local population.
We support people for many
reasons and increasingly we are
supporting residents with
multiple needs.

Page 46

•

What they said

There are an estimated 18,700
carers in Islington, of which
5.8% are known to the Islington
Carer’s Hub. We are working to
identify and support more
residents with caring
responsibilities.

68% of residents we support said that
they felt safe
Similar to statistical neighbours

Social
Support
14%
Mental
Health
13%
Learning
Disability
13%
Sensory
4%

Our aging population is a primary driver of adult social care
demand. We are expecting a significant increase in the
number of residents living with dementia.

Physical
56%

2020/21 LBI
Data

69% of residents we support spend
their time doing things they value and
enjoy Higher than statistical neighbours
43% of residents we support found it
easy to find information or advice by
themselves Higher than England
75% of residents we support said
they had as much social contact as
they’d like Similar to statistical neighbours
Data source: ASCOF in 2019/20.
Officers are currently undertaking the survey for 2021/22.
Statistical Neighbours are boroughs with similar populations and demography
to Islington

We are supporting an increasing number of Islington residents to live well and age well. Many of the people we
support are positive about their experiences but we are striving to improve services for all.

Adult Social Care finance: how we spent public money
Adult Social Care represents a significant investment for the
Council, in line with our commitment to a fairer Islington.

Page 47

Between 2019/20 and 2020/21, gross expenditure on Adult
Social Care increased by c.£10m – from £142.778m to £152.417m.
The increase in overall expenditure was primarily due to the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and was primarily funded by NHS
COVID-19 funding.
Like all local authorities, Islington is subject to significant
financial pressures. Central Government has cut its core funding to
Islington Council by 70% since 2010 and there is increasing demand for
services. We have managed to make significant savings by
rethinking how we design our services and by embedding
strengths-based ways of working.
In this context, Islington Council is proactively calling on
central government to provide sustainable funding to deliver
high quality social care services.

2019-20

Other L/T care

2020-21

Nursing
Direct Payments

Supported Accommodation
Home Care

Residential

Percentage of total gross expenditure on long term care

Overall spend on Adult Social Care has increased with an increase of spend on support to keep people at home for
longer. The department faces significant financial challenges in the years to come.

Trends across Adult Social Care 2019/20 and 2020/21
Demand and Activity
Reviews:
Care Act Assessments:
Hospital Discharges:

Page 48

Urgent Response:

We have, overall, completed more reviews on ASC service users in 2020/21 than in 2019/20,
despite increased pressure on the service from COVID-19.
Similar to reviews, the average number of care act assessments completed per month
significantly increased in 2020/21 despite pressures of COVID-19.
Significantly more hospital discharges were recorded on our Adult Social Care systems in
2020/21 compared to 2019/20.
The number of contacts received by urgent response significantly increased in 2020/21
compared to 2019/20.

Complexity of Cases
New Care Home
Admissions:
Safeguarding:
Homecare Hours:
High cost packages:

The number of residents admitted to nursing and residential care homes increased in 2020/21
compared to 2019/20.
Safeguarding concerns increased in 2020/21, specifically with an increase in domestic abuse and
self neglect section 42 enquiries.
Average weekly hours of homecare increased in 2020/21 compared to 2019/20.
Care packages over £100K increased in 2020/21.

Over the last two years, we have seen increases in demand and activity across Adult Social Care and are supporting
residents with increasingly complex needs

2020/21 A year like no other: the Adult Social Care response to
COVID-19
COVID response and achievements

Page 49

Islington council has provided
£2.25M of grants to support
social care providers
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

2.09 Million items of PPE
distributed between March 2020
and 2021 costing £806K

Islington has the highest
COVID vaccine uptake
amongst care home workers
in London

Supporting the COVID vaccine rollout to staff and residents supported by Adult Social Care.
Establishing Integrated Discharge Teams rapidly – to support safe timely hospital discharges.
Supporting providers to meet additional COVID costs – with £2.25m of grants.
Establishing a Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) offer rapidly to meet increased COVID-related PPE needs.
Scaling up 7 day discharge support via the Brokerage Team.
Supporting rollout of COVID testing across the social care workforce and for residents in our services.
Delivering the Council’s Track and Trace programme and welfare checks for shielding residents.
Supporting residents to find work in social care and providers to recruit new staff.

Under unprecedented pressure, the department has stepped up to respond to COVID and has continued to work to
drive transformational changes to ways of working

Key achievements – 2019/20 and 2020/21
The Council continued to embed the Building Strengths for Better Lives approach via training and worked with residents to
co-produce Adult Social Care Principles.

•

Commissioners supported all in-borough care homes inspected by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) to improve their
quality ratings by the end of 2020/21.

•

Continued progress on the Transforming Care agenda – this is our work to support residents with learning disabilities, autism, or
mental health needs to move from hospitals back into the community. In 2019/20, we supported four people to leave hospital.

•

Expanding use of assistive technology to support residents to stay safe at home – in 2020/21 the number of Telecare clients
increased to over 1,732, an 8% increase from the previous year.

•

Expanding access to adaptations support to enable more people to stay safe at home – in 2019/20, means testing qualification
was stopped on Disabled Facilities Grant for adaptations under £10,000.

•

Providing support to enable residents to stay warm, active, healthy and connected via the Winter Wellness project. 118
residents received an intervention.

•

Launching a more responsive mental health recovery pathway –Islington’s new integrated offer launched in 2019.

•

Islington was recognised as a Dementia Friendly Community and the number of Dementia Friends expanded.

•

Officers worked with external experts to roll out a department-wide Resilience training programme for all staff.

Page 50

•

In a climate of significant uncertainty, disruption, and with huge challenges Adult Social Care have continued to
deliver quality service, drive improvements, and made key contributions to the Council COVID response

Key challenges – 2019/20 and 2020/21

Financial pressure

There has been a
significant increase in
demand for social care
services and people
are presenting with
increasingly complex
needs. The full impact
of the pandemic (e.g.
of social isolation,
Long COVID, etc.) is
still not yet fully
understood but is
likely to affect demand
in 2021/22.

There are significant
pressures on adult
social care budgets, in
large part due to
increase demand. This
has been compounded
by central
government’s
piecemeal to funding
in the pandemic. In
2021/22 the
department must
make savings of
£5.5m

Page 51

Increased demand

Market fragility

Inequality

Workforce

Safeguarding

There has been an
Although the inSignificant recruitment
The pandemic has
increase in the
borough market has
and retention
highlighted and
number of
remained relatively
challenges remain
exacerbated existing
stable, there have
inequalities in society. across social care and safeguarding concerns
reported over the
been changes in
the pandemic has
In response, the
period and we have
regional and national Council have launched presented significant
been particularly
markets which have
challenges
for
staff
its Challenging
concerned about
affected a small
wellbeing.
Inequalities
increases in domestic
number of residents
Programme which
violence and selfand that have reduced officers will continue
neglect. The pandemic
overall availability of to develop in 2021/22.
also meant we had to
care options.
change the way we
work to safeguard
people.

The pandemic has highlighted and exacerbated a range of pre-existing challenges – which are expected to continue
into 2021/22 – officers have responded by working differently, more innovatively, and by driving transformation.

Adult Social Care – moving forward
Opportunities/priorities
•

COVID recovery and renewal

•

Further embedding the ‘Building Strengths for
Betters Lives’ approach

•

Transformation

Page 52

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Demand management
Partnership and collaboration
Collaborative commissioning
Care at home
Assistive technology
In-House transformation
Maximising Independence

•

Challenging Inequalities

•

Fairer Together

•

Returning to a sustainable financial position

Legislative/Strategic changes
The Health and Care Bill is due to make significant change
to how health and social care services are organised, in
response over 2021/22:
•

Officers from Social Care and Strategic Commissioning will
be working with local health partners to implement new
working arrangements as part of the newly formed
Integrated Care System. This will include opportunities to
improve joint working, as well as working to ensure the needs of
Islington residents continue to be well-served and funding is used to
best effect for the benefit of residents and the system.

•

Officers will be preparing for re-introduction of CQC
inspections of Council Adult Social Care functions, including
by undertaking a range of internal quality assurance work.

Additionally, officers will be preparing for the transition from
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) to Liberty Protection
Safeguards.

Moving forward, the Adult Social Care department will continue to work at pace in pursuit of opportunities to deliver
our vision, further transformation, to contribute to key Council priorities, and to respond to changing legislative
requirements and operating environment.

Contact details
Report of:
Cllr Nurullah Turan, Executive Member for Health and Social Care
John Everson, Director of Adult Social Care

Page 53

Report Authors:
Russell Jones, Acting Senior Commissioning Manager
Evie Lodge, Principal Adult Social Care Intelligence Specialist
Report Date:
September 2021
Contact:
People@Islington.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Adult Social Care: Covid-19 - Update
John Everson
November 2021

Agenda Item 12

Page 55

Update to Health & Social Care
Scrutiny

Adult Social Care (ASC) COVID Update - November 2021
Vaccinations
All care homes prepared for implementation of mandatory COVID vaccination requirements which come into force on the
11th November 2021.

•

Booster vaccines have been offered to all eligible residents living in older people care homes. Whittington Health will continue
to offer this via in-reach to residents in wider accommodation based settings over the coming weeks and months.

•

Officers are working, with health and care partners, to promote uptake of the flu vaccine amongst staff and residents
engaged in ASC services.

Page 56

•

Care homes
•

There have been no new COVID cases in any Islington care home this month.

•

There have been no deaths since the start of February 2021.

•

Staffing levels remain stable.

Home Care
•

Home care agencies have reported caring for no new cases this month.

•

Home care agencies have reported no COVID-related deaths of residents they care for to commissioners.

•

Islington home care providers are currently able to meet demand.

Jonathan O’Sullivan, Acting Director of Public Health
Mahnaz Shaukat, Head of Health and Care Intelligence
October 2021

Agenda Item 13

Page 57

Health inequalities and the Impacts of
Covid-19

Content of report
This report is intended to provide an overview of health and health inequalities across the borough, as they existed
in the period before Covid and since the impact of Covid. It draws together a mix of local analysis with national
analysis and evidence.
The report begins with a brief overview of health inequalities, and the factors that shape them, together with a
population overview.
Page 58

It then moves on to review the direct impacts of Covid on the population, including local reviews of admissions and
deaths, national findings on the impacts on health inequalities between different groups, and local estimates of
persistent long Covid.
The report next considers health and health inequalities along the life course (organised by Start Well, Live Well
(adults of working age) and Age Well (older adults), and what is currently known about (or are areas of concern
arising from) the indirect impacts of Covid, as well as a summary of resident engagement on the wider impacts of
Covid after the first wave. This engagement survey is currently being repeated, which will give a longer term
perspective on the impacts after the second and this current third wave of Covid infections.
Finally, the report briefly considers population health management, which is a data and insight-led approach using
real time data to identify and address inequalities in access, care and outcomes.

Page 59

1. Background: population, deprivation and health
inequalities in Islington

Context: health inequalities

Page 60

•

Health inequalities are largely due to the unfair and unjust inequalities in society
in which people are born, live, work and age. These inequalities are structural (a
consequence of the social and economic organisation of society) and avoidable.

•

Inequalities are driven by a high level of deprivation among some communities,
affecting all aspects of people’s lives from their childhood, education,
employment, income, housing and neighbourhood. These factors drive
inequalities in physical and mental health, reducing an individual’s ability to stay
well and healthy, prevent sickness, or to take action and access early help or
treatment when ill health occurs.

•

Poverty is a key determinant of poor outcomes in health and wellbeing and is
linked to a higher level of risk behaviours and fewer protective factors for health,
increased risk of early and serious ill health, reduced quality of life and early
death.

•

International analysis of countries with similar income levels shows that societies
with high levels of inequalities have poorer health outcomes across the general
community too, compared to countries with lower levels of inequalities

•

The COVID-19 pandemic has starkly exposed these structural inequalities: the risk
of becoming seriously ill or dying with Covid-19 was much higher among people
experiencing deprivation and disadvantage, including significant differences by
ethnicity, deprivation, disability and gender.

Context: Population and Expected Growth
•

The London borough of Islington has an estimated
population of about 244,400 people. Pre-Covid
was expected to increase by approximately 2% by
2026, with the largest percentage growth expected
amongst the older population (65 and over).
The population is relatively young compared with
the national average, with a notably larger young
adult population of those aged 20-39.

•

Islington is one of the most ethnically diverse
places in the country. Approximately 33% of
Islington residents are from Black, Asian, or other
minority ethnic communities, with the largest
groups being ‘Other White’ and Black African and
Black Caribbean groups.

•

There is a lot of uncertainty about the current size
of the population. Historically there has been a lot
of migration, nationally and internationally. These
may have been significantly affected by the
impacts of Covid-19, Brexit and benefit changes,
among other factors. The 2021 Census will provide
some assessment of this impact.

Page 61

•

Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic
residents

GLA, Housing-led population projections,
2016

Deprivation
The level of deprivation in an area can be
used to identify those communities who may
be in greatest need of services. The Index of
Multiple Deprivation (IMD) is a measure of the
level of deprivation. Deprivation scores are
ranked nationally from most deprived to the
least deprived areas.

•

In 2019, Islington was the 6th most deprived
London borough, and the 53rd most deprived
in England.
Deprivation is strongly
concentrated into children and families and
older people in Islington, who have among
the highest deprivation levels in the country.

Page 62

•

•

The geographic pattern of deprivation in
Islington is very different from many other
areas. Whereas many boroughs have clear
distinctions between poorer and more affluent
wards, Islington’s mix of housing means that
deprivation is very disseminated across the
borough and is strongly concentrated into
social housing estates in Islington.

Figure 1. Map of social housing estates in Figure 2. Index of multiple deprivation 2019,
national quintiles
Islington

Inequalities in Life Expectancy
Islington residents experience lower life expectancy, and women lower
healthy life expectancy, compared to London, but are similar to
national averages.

•

Inequality in life expectancy (the difference between the least and
most deprived areas within Islington is 9.8 years for men (compared
to 7.2 in London and 9.4 in England) and 5.1 for females (similar to
London and lower than England).

•

•

Page 63

•

Inequality in life expectancy in Islington has widened, and
improvements in life expectancy slowed, since the middle of the last
decade. This trend has been seen in other deprived areas nationally
and in London, and represents a marked break in the post-war trend
of improving life expectancy.

Main underlying causes of early death in Islington are cardiovascular
disease, cancer and respiratory diseases, with those living in the most
deprived communities in Islington having a 80% higher death rate
from avoidable causes of death compared to the NCL average. For
cardiovascular disease, there are clear ethnic inequalities with Black
communities more likely to die prematurely from preventable (e.g.
smoking) or treatable (e.g. atrial fibrillation detection) causes.

Those living with serious mental health illnesses and learning
disabilities also experience large inequalities, as do the homeless.
For example, the premature mortality rate for those with serious
mental illness in Islington is three times higher than the rest of the
population.

Life expectancy and healthy life expectancy
England

London

Islington

Trend for
Islington*

Life expectancy at birth: Male

80

81

80

↑ (2013)

Inequality in life expectancy: Male

9.4

7.2

9.8

↑

Life expectancy at birth: Female
Inequality in life expectancy: Female
Healthy life expectancy at birth - Male

83

85

83

↑ (2013)

7.6
63

5.1
64

5.1
63

↑
→ (2013)

Healthy life expectancy at birth - Female

64

64

62

→ (2013)

Public Health England, Overarching indicators, Life expectancy (2017-2019) and healthy life expectancy
(2016-2018)
*Trend for Islington based on change of indicator in last 10 years or nearest baseline year provided

2 How Covid-19 directly and indirectly impacts health
and health inequalities
Page 64

Health impacts of Covid-19 Projected health impacts
of Covid-19

Page 65

• The impacts of Covid relate to the immediate
and direct impacts of Covid-19, and the
longer term consequences which extend well
beyond.
• Covid-19 has exacerbated existing health
inequalities and directly disproportionately
impacted:
• Men
• Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic
communities
• Most deprived communities
• People living in care homes
• Those with learning disabilities
• Those living with a mental health
condition
• People with underlying health
conditions and physical disabilities

Page 66

3 Direct impacts of Covid-19
and health inequalities in
Islington
Deaths
Admissions
Inequalities
Long Covid

There had been a total of 1,627 COVID-19 admissions among residents up
to July 2021.

•

The highest rate of hospital admissions in Islington was for people of Other
ethnic groups, which is 2.85 times higher than the average in Islington. It
is also higher than the rate in any other ethnic group. This may be due to
how hospitals have coded ethnicity, compared to nationally derived local
population estimates.

•

•

•

Page 67

•

The Black population and Asian population also have a higher rate of
COVID-19 admissions compared to the Islington average, whilst those from
a White group or mixed had a lower or similar rate of COVID-19
admissions compared to the Islington average.
The rate of hospital admissions for males was higher compared with
females in Islington, although the rate was not significantly different from
the Islington average.
Residents aged 55 and over had higher rates of COVID-19 admissions
compared to the Islington average, which is similar to national patterns of
increasing risks with older age.

Indirect standardised rate ratio

Hospital admissions
350
300

Indirect standardised rate ratio of COVID-19
hospital admissions by ethnicity, Islington,
October 2019 to July 2021
Islington

250
200
150
100
50
0

183

243

114

776

37

Other

Black

Asian

White

Mixed

Ethnicity

Note: Those with unknown ethnicity have been excluded from the analysis (17%). Number
indicates the number of admissions by ethnic group.
Source: CSU data warehouse, September 2021

COVID-19 impacts: mortality
•

•

•

Higher than average
No different to average
Lower than average
Average

There have been two major waves of Covid-19 deaths. The first
wave from March 2020 to August 2020 caused 155 deaths (death
rate 63.9 per 100,000) in Islington, compared to 96.2 in London and
89 per 100,000 in London and . The second wave from September
2020 to April 2021 caused an addition 211 COVID-18 deaths (87 per
100,000) London 119.6 per 100,000 and England 146.1.

Page 68

•

The cumulative overall death rate in Islington, for deaths that
occurred up to 15th of October is 161.3 rate (391 deaths with
COVID-19 mentioned), this compares with 228.9 for London and
251.4 for England.

Ethnicity is not recorded on death certificates. However, by linking
deaths data to local data from GP’s and hospitals an ethnicity can be
derived. Using this methodology an analysis of deaths from COVID19 for the period 1st of January 2020 to 11th of August 2021 shows
that people from the Black and Asian ethnic groups are more likely
to have died from COVID-19 than average. (NB: Due to small
numbers data for Camden, Islington and Haringey was combined for
the local mortality analysis.)
People from the White British group were less likely to have died
from COVID-19 than the average.

Source: 01-Jan-2020 to 11-Aug-2021 ONS Mortality data linked to NHS GP/SUS data for ethnicity. Population data from
registered GP patients.

Deaths recorded between 01 Jan 2020– 11 Aug 2021 for Camden,
Haringey and Islington

Standardised mortality ratio (ISRx100) for COVID-19
deaths for Black and Asian ethnic subgroups
Higher than average
No different to average
Lower than average
Average

Page 69
Deaths recorded between 01 Jan – 11 Aug 2021 for Camden, Haringey and Islington

• Breaking down the Black
and Asian ethnicity groups
into subgroups shows that
Black African, Caribbean,
British and Asian
Indian/Other or
Bangladeshi were more
likely to have died from
COVID-19 than average.

Disparity in risks and outcomes in COVID-19
Professor Kevin Fenton led Public Health England’s national review of key inequalities impacts after the first wave of
infections, which found multiple impacts especially linked to age, ethnicity and deprivation. As further analyses have
been carried out and through the second wave, these findings have been re-enforced, as well as insight into the
inequalities impacts on people with disabilities, pregnancy women and their babies and occupational groups.

Page 70

Disparity in risks and outcomes in COVID-19
Deprivation

Those living in the most deprived quintiles were more likely to be infected with COVID-19 and have poorer outcomes
(including mortality) than those in the least deprived quintiles.
It was not possible to identify a conclusive trend in Islington.

Page 71

Geography

Urban areas such as London had the highest rates of COVID-19 diagnoses and deaths.
Islington has had a lower mortality rate than the national average.

Comorbidities

The main comorbidities mentioned on COVID-19 death certificates included diabetes, hypertensive diseases, chronic
kidney disease, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease and dementia. The most profound link was with diabetes,
which was listed on 21% of death certificates.

Occupations

Due to small numbers and limited data, clear trends were not possible to deduce reviewing death certification during
the first wave, however, nursing auxiliaries and assistants saw an increase in all cause deaths linked to COVID-19.
Subsequent analysis shows that health, social care and transport workers had significantly higher risk of severe Covid
(death or hospitalisation); and risk of Covid was linked to work outside of home, physical proximity to others at work,
and other workplace conditions (e.g. lack of ventilation, social distancing).
It was similarly not possible to identify trends in Islington based on death certification.

Long Covid
• Post Covid Syndrome (PCS) is a term used to describe the signs and symptoms caused by Covid-19
infection that persist beyond 12 weeks.
• A very wide range of symptoms and syndromes are reported including fatigue, breathlessness,
aches, sleep disturbance, cognitive impacts
• An estimated 1.15% of the London population report symptoms of Long Covid (which would equate to
2,788 people in Islington) (ONS, Aug 2021)
Page 72

• Of those with confirmed Covid-19, an estimated 7.5% experience Long Covid symptoms that have a
significant impact on their daily life
• Diagnosis rates of Long Covid in Islington are far lower than this, which suggests that many people
may be unaware of sources of support

Page 73

4 Pre-Covid health and inequalities in Islington and
Covid impacts

The Fairer Together Partnership is organised along the life course, with three age groupings.
Health outcomes, inequalities and indirect Covid-19 impacts are considered under the headings of:
Start Well
Live Well
Age Well
Findings from the resident engagement survey, carried out over the summer of 2020, are
summarised around the wider impacts of Covid.

•

•

•

•

•

Islington is the most deprived borough in London for income
deprivation affecting children (IDACI). In 2019, 28% of residents
under 18 were living in families facing income deprivation
compared with 18% in London. In the same year, Islington had the
10th highest levels of IDACI in the country. Poverty substantially
impacts on the life chances and future health and wellbeing of
children.
Islington has similar outcomes for GCSE attainment compared to
London and better compared to the England average.

Page 74

•

Start Well

Nearly a quarter of children in London are obese at the time they
leave primary school. Islington has a rate of obesity similar to that
of London.

Hospital admissions for self harm among young people are
significantly lower than national averages, although higher than the
London average.
Islington has a lower uptake of childhood immunisations compared
to London and England, with MMR uptake in the borough far below
the herd immunity for measles (95%).
The pandemic is likely to have widened the gap between children in
poverty and others, with significant impacts on social and emotional
health and development, education and physical health.

Start Well indicators
England
Average

London
Average

Islington

Trend for
Islington*

School readiness (children having good
development at end of reception)

72%

74%

71%

↑ (2012)

Educational attainment (5 or more
GCSEs)

58%

61%

61%

→ (2013)

192

191

137

↓

21%

24%

25%

↑

220

→ (2012)

18%

↑ (2014)

Education

Asthma admissions (per 100,000
population, age 0-9)
Obesity (at year 6)

Health and wellbeing

Hospital admissions as a result of self440
190
harm (per 100,000 population, age 10-24)
Wider determinants
Children in relative low-income families
19%
18%
(under 16)
Immunisations
MMR vaccine coverage (age 2)

91%

84%

81%

↓

Children in care immunisations

88%

80%

97%

-

Fingertips, 2018-2020
*Trend for Islington based on change of indicator in last 10 years or nearest baseline year provided

Impact of COVID19 on Start Well
Maternal, antenatal and
early years (0-5)

Page 75

•
•
•
•
•

Changes in availability and support in pregnancy and for new parents
Concerns about potential changes in unplanned pregnancy rates
Risks of reduced access to routine immunisations leading to potential future outbreaks
Impacts on early socialisation and development
Impacts on parental employment and income

School-aged children (516)

• Concerns around educational attainment gap due to school closures • Differential home schooling provision,
environment and equipment • Changes (reductions?) in physical activity and diet for children – child obesity was
already high in London and links with deprivation • Family financial circumstances, poor housing and food insecurity
impacts on children

Transition to adulthood

• Disruption to education and exams, along with financial constraints, may limit future opportunities • If there is an
economic recession, likely to have a disproportionate impact on young people’s employment • Young adults have
been more likely to lose jobs, be furloughed, and work in a sector forced to close than other age groups. They are
less likely to be able to work from home. • Scarring impacts of early unemployment and debt on health over the life
course

Safeguarding and mental
health

• Fewer opportunities to identify and monitor safeguarding concerns, and reduced access to support for children and
families • Evidence that child maltreatment and domestic abuse increase during periods of economic recession •
Multiple stressors impacting mental health of children and young people, including changes to or lack of routine,
increased isolation, uncertain future, stress and anxiety and bereavement

Source: The wider impacts of COVID19 and recovery of population health in London. PHE. ADPH. Mayor of
London

Live Well
• Islington has one of the highest prevalence of common mental
health illness and serious mental illness in London. The Covid19 pandemic has had an adverse impact on some people’s
mental health, so mental health needs in Islington are
predicted to increase.

Page 76

• Smoking, alcohol and obesity are major risk factors for early
death. Smoking rates and alcohol admissions are higher in
Islington compared to London and England average, although
both have reduced over time.
• In Islington there are about 11,500 people living with diabetes,
3,800 with heart disease and approximately 4,000 with serious
respiratory disease (COPD).
• The wider determinants of health are critical for health and
wellbeing too. Islington has significantly higher proportion of
residents claiming out of work benefits compared to London
and England.
• Air pollution levels are improving but remain higher in Islington
compared to England.

Live Well indicators
England
Average

Mental Health

London
Average

Depression and common mental
17%
19%
disorders (16+)
Severe mental illness
0.9%
1.1%
Lifestyle risk factors
Overweight/obese (18+)
63%
56%
Smoking (18+)
14%
14%
Alcohol-related hospital admissions
640
600
(per 100,000 population)
Wider determinants
Unemployment (claiming out of work
6.5%
7.6%
benefits, 16-64 years)
Air pollution (μg/m3)

9.0%

11%

Homelessness (household owed a
12%
15%
duty, rate per 1,000)
Long term conditions
Diabetes (17+)
7.1%
6.8%
Chronic kidney disease (18+)
Cancer (new cases per 100,000
population)
Hypertension
Coronary heart disease

Islington

Trend for
Islington*

23%

↑ (2014)

1.4%

→ (2012)

49%
12%

→ (2015)

820

↓

9.6%

-

12%

↓

11%

-

4.8%

→ (2015)

↓

4.0%

2.4%

1.7%

↓ (2012)

530

350

320

→

14%
3.1%

11%
1.9%

8.8%
1.4%

↓ (2013)

*Trend for Islington based on change of indicator in last 10 years or nearest baseline year provided
Fingertips 2018-2020

↓ (2012)

Age well
Age Well indicators
• Islington has the 4th highest levels of income deprivation
affecting older people in London. 34% of residents over the
age of 60 were facing income deprivation, compared to a
London average of 22%.

England
Average

Islington

Trend for
Islington*

0.73

0.69

→

63%

59%

↓ (2013)

64%
56%
Lifestyle risk factors

53%

↑ (2015)

1040

1450

→

14%

NA~

34%

→ (2015)

10%
12%
Ageing
4.0%

11%
10%

11%
8.1%

→ (2015)

4.2%

4.8%

↓ (2017)

NA

31%

↑ (2018)

Healthy lifestyle
Health-related quality of life (65+, 0 to
0.74
1 score)
Abdominal aortic aneurysm screening

• A lower proportion of older people live alone in Islington
although the trend is increasing and with increased risk of
social isolation.

Alcohol-related conditions admissions
(65+, per 100,000 population)

Page 77

• NHS screening programmes help to prevent early death.
Islington has a low uptake of bowel cancer screening and
aortic aneurysm compared to London and England.

• Levels of dementia are higher than the London average in
Islington, with around one in twenty older people diagnosed.
This is primarily due to much higher levels of early diagnosis
through the local memory assessment service, rather than to
population differences.
• Moderate or severe frailty prevalence is high in Islington
with Islington also having relatively higher rates of alcohol
admissions among older people.

London
Average

Bowel cancer screening

Older people in poverty (60+,
IDAOPI)
Fuel poverty (65+)
Older people living alone (65+)
Dementia (65+)
Moderate or severe frailty (eFI
classification)^

76%

1050

Wider determinants

NA

-

Fingertips 2018-2020
GP records, individuals registered with GP on eFI frailty classification, Snapshot of records 14th August, 2021
~London average not available, values compared to England average
^HealtheIntent data not available for England or London
*Trend for Islington based on change of indicator in last 10 years or nearest baseline year provided

Impact of COVID19 on Live well and Age well:
1. Risk and protective factors
• Activity limited by lockdown, working from home and school closures • Change in levels and type of physical activity •
Possible increase in sedentary behaviour • Opportunity presented by policy encouraging and facilitating active travel,
e.g. TfL Streetspace

Healthy eating

• Evidence of change in dietary behaviours • Psychological impacts of lockdown impact food choices • Rising food
insecurity and use of food banks • Challenges around measuring changes to physical activity and diet, and obesity levels

Page 78

Physical activity

Smoking

• Mixed evidence of trend in smoking behaviour during lockdown, early signs of reduction but later reports of increased
smoking among 18-24s • Insecure economic circumstances associated with increased smoking and smoking inequalities
– as is affordability of cigarettes • Disruption to smoking cessation support services, in particular face to face services •
Motivation for smokers to quit due to campaigning around links to COVID-19

Alcohol

• Changes in patterns of alcohol use • Concern around potential increases in problematic drinking – one survey found
nearly a fifth of daily drinkers in the UK had further increased the amount they drank during lockdown • Potential drivers
for increasing alcohol consumption include changing habits, bereavement, isolation, troubled relationships, job insecurity

Substance misuse

• Changes and disruption to support services during lockdown, though unclear on the extent and impact • Impact on
recovery, eg loss of ‘recovery capital’ social, employment, education/training • Changes in London drug supply and
availability • Reports of increased online gang recruitment and activity

Source: The wider impacts of COVID19 and recovery of population health in London. PHE. ADPH. Mayor of
London

Impact of COVID19
Health on Live well and Age well:
2. Physical Health Impacts
Temporary

Page 79

Managing delayed diagnoses of long term
conditions and the deterioration of conditions will
be addressed
Additional cost to the health and social care system
due to the pandemic should decrease
Medical Optimisation approach (temporary
health response to manage demand such as early
discharge) will be monitored to ensure it does not
become BAU

The loss of social connection may be short lived
and could be reversed if built effectively into all age
early intervention and prevention services (social
connectedness has significant impacts on physical as
well as mental health)

Short-medium term
The short-medium term impacts of “Long Covid” (~7.5%)
Delayed diagnoses due to missed appointments resulting in
later presentations or worse outcomes for long term conditions
such as cancer, diabetes, strokes and dementia
Backlog of waiting lists for surgery and elective care that
had to be postponed due to the pandemic
Changes in service delivery due to lockdowns: Increasing
use of remote technologies, with both benefits and drawbacks
(such as digital exclusion)
Disproportionate impact of virus on:
• People from Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic communities
• Carers
• Older people
• People living with dementia, with mental health needs and
with learning disabilities

Long term
The long term impacts of “Long Covid”, currently
unknown (some experiencing symptoms >1yr)
Service pressures such as:
•
Unmet needs, late presentations and waiting lists in
primary, community and secondary care
•
Greater need for prevention and early intervention
due to social isolation
•
Health and social care staffing pressures
•
Risk that other respiratory diseases (e.g. flu) will
cause more disruption
Inequalities in health outcomes, as well as inequalities
in take up of the vaccine and access to services and
information
Distrust and experience of authorities among
disadvantaged communities
Potential increase in obesity linked to reduced levels
of physical activity and consequent health impacts

Impact of COVID19 on Live well and Age well:
3. Mental Health and Wellbeing
Large national surveys1 have found higher numbers of people experiencing anxiety and depression than before the
pandemic and people’s satisfaction with life is now lower. It is as yet unclear whether these impacts are temporary or lasting.
Local residents’ and stakeholders’2 views paint a similar picture. A large majority (81%) of residents are somewhat or very
worried about the impact of Covid-193, particularly on mental health and wellbeing (26%).

Page 80

Modelling predicts there may be 28,266 new cases of moderate-severe anxiety and 38,671 new cases of
depression in adults in the borough (a rise of 16 and 22%)4. There may be 12,052 new cases of depression (a rise of
19.5%) in the under-25s4; those who were shielding or bereaved are most at risk4. The number of people affected by mild
illness and reduced wellbeing (the scope of this piece of work) is likely to be higher.
Social isolation is more widespread2,3 and particularly acute for some people3 (e.g. people who were shielding, those from
LGBT+ communities, or people with learning disabilities who rely on services which have closed). Local residents who live
alone are much more likely to experience extreme loneliness3.
Some people have suffered more from Covid-19’s effects on mental health and wellbeing. The wider determinants of
health, including but not limited to ethnicity, gender, family and employment status, have an influence. Levels of depression
and anxiety are still highest1 among, for example: women, young adults, people who live alone or with children or in
urban areas, or are from Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) backgrounds.
1 UCL Covid-19 Social Study Results Release 25. Nov 2020
2 Stakeholder meetings and stakeholder survey

3 Covid-19 resident engagement. Camden and Islington Public Health team. Oct 2020
4 Centre for Mental Health Forecast Modelling Toolkit. Nov 2020 – results available on
request

Covid Resident Engagement 2020: Wider impacts of Covid-19
Engagement findings highlighted social inequalities. The wider impacts of the pandemic, such as employment and
education were disproportionately affecting Black, Asian and ethnic minority residents. Other groups such as those
with physical/ cognitive/ sensory impairments, carers or those facing multiple disadvantage had been greatly affected.

Page 81

• Majority of Islington resident survey respondents were somewhat (42%) or very worried (39%) about the pandemic. Asian, Black and
Other ethnic groups were significantly more worried compared with white ethnicities.
• Mental health (47%) was Islington residents’ most common concern during the pandemic, followed by physical health (43%), fear of
contracting the virus (42%), health and wellbeing of loved ones (40%) and feeling worried about the future (28%).
• A significantly higher proportion of respondents from Asian (60%) and Black ethnicities (40%) chose “household or personal
finances” as one of the factors that worries them most compared to those from White ethnicities (20%).
• Covid-19 has wide-ranging impacts on residents, most frequently mentioned impacts were related to employment, mental health
and wellbeing, relationships and finances. Free text analysis suggests the impact on ‘access to services, information or support’
was twice as high for residents from Black, Asian or other ethnic minority backgrounds (14%) than residents from White backgrounds (6%);
and also for concerns over impact on ‘children’s education’, which was twice as high for residents from Black, Asian and other ethnic
minority backgrounds (10%) than for residents from White backgrounds (5%).
• There have been many acts of kindness across Islington. The levels of community cohesion have been greater since the outbreak. VCS and
community organisations play a key role in supporting at-risk residents in the borough. Formal and informal support are equally important.

“Since this pandemic it’s been near on impossible to find
a job and so financially, that’s quite devastating”

"I had a couple of breakdowns, really bad breakdowns, I started
crying, I literally locked myself away in a room for six months…
I wasn’t talking to no-one... I literally just switched off’’

5 Population health management
Page 82

Going Forward: Population health management approach to
health inequalities
• The widespread impacts of Covid-19 on population health appears likely to contribute to further inequalities and
poorer health outcomes in coming years. The evidence base about the nature and extent of these is still
developing.
Page 83

• Working in partnership with the NHS, a population health management approach to improving wellbeing and
reducing health inequalities is being developed across North Central London. The approach identifies inequalities,
gaps in care and variations in care, and develops interventions to address the inequalities. This includes a
significant development in the use of real time data as part of the HealthEIntent data system that supports
services to monitor needs and track improvements in care by population characteristics and
area/service/practice/team level. This data and intelligence-led approach is envisaged as a key part of Integrated
Care Systems going forward.
• Alongside recovery of planned hospital care, there needs to be a strong focus on recovery of evidence-based
preventative interventions that will reduce early deaths, targeted to groups most affected. These
disproportionately impacted groups include those living in the most deprived communities and many ethnic
groups.
• Mental health recovery is equally important, ranging from more individualised support for people with complex
mental health problems through public mental health programmes, including tackling social isolation and anxiety.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 14

Chief Executive Department
Town Hall, London N1 2UD
Report of: Public Health
Meeting of:
Date:
Health and Social Care Scrutiny 16 November 2021
Committee
Delete as appropriate

Exempt

Ward(s):
All
Non-exempt

SUBJECT: Quarter 1 Performance Report: 2021-2022
1. Synopsis
1.1 The council has in place a suite of corporate performance indicators to help
monitor progress in delivering the outcomes set out in the council’s Corporate Plan.
Progress on key performance measures are reported through the council’s Scrutiny
Committees on a quarterly basis to ensure accountability to residents and to enable
challenge where necessary.
1.2 This report sets out Quarter 1, 2021-2022 progress against targets for those
performance indicators that fall within the Health and Social Care outcome area, for
which the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Committee has responsibility.
1.3 It is suggested that Scrutiny undertake a deep dive of one objective under the
related corporate outcome over a 12-month period. This will enable more effective
monitoring and challenge as required.
2. Recommendations
2.1 To note performance against targets in Quarter 1 2021/22 for measures relating
to Health and Independence.
2.2 To suggest one objective under related corporate outcome for a deep dive
review, to take place over a 12-month period.

Page 85

1

3. Background
3.1 A suite of corporate performance indicators has been agreed for 2018-22, which

help track progress in delivering the seven priorities set out in the Council’s Corporate
Plan - Building a Fairer Islington. Targets are set on an annual basis and performance
is monitored internally, through Departmental Management Teams, Corporate
Management Board and Joint Board, and externally through the Scrutiny
Committees.
3.2 The Health and Social Care Scrutiny Committee is responsible for monitoring and
challenging performance for the following key outcome area: Public Health.
3.3 Scrutiny committees can suggest a deep dive against one objective under the
related corporate outcome. This will enable a comprehensive oversight of suggested
objective, using triangulation of data such as complaints, risk reports, resident
surveys and financial data and, where able to, hearing from partners, staff and
residents, getting out into the community and visiting services, to better understand
the challenge and provide more solid recommendations.
4. Quarter 1 Performance Update – Public Health
PI
No.

Indicator

2019/20
Actual

2020/21
Actual

2021/22
Target

Q1
2021/2
2

On target?

Q1
last
year

Better
than Q1
last year?

HI1

Population
vaccination coverage
DTaP/IPV/Hib3 at age 12 months

New
Corporate
Target

84%

No
target set

85%

N/A New
Indicator for
recovery

N/A

HI2

Population vaccination coverage
MMR2 (Age 5)

New
Corporate
Target

71%

No
target set.

70%

N/A New
Indicator for
recovery

N/A

HI3

Number of child health clinics run
per week (out of a pre-covid19
quota of 12/week).

New
Corporate
Target

11 clinics

No
target set.

11

HI4

Number of Long Acting Reversible
Contraception (LARC)
prescriptions in local integrated
sexual health services.
Percentage of smokers using stop
smoking services who stop
smoking (measured four weeks
after quit date).
Percentage of drug users in drug
treatment who successfully
complete treatment and do not
re-present within six months.

1335

881

1100

426

N/A New
Indicator for
recovery
Yes

N/A no
data was
available
for last
year.
N/A no
data was
available
for last
year.
5

75

Yes

57%

58.3%

50%

62%

Yes

62%

Same

15.2%

12%

20%

13.2%

No

16.7%

No

Percentage of alcohol users who
successfully complete the
treatment plan.

42.9%

32.8%

42.0%

37%

No

33.7%

Yes

HI5

HI6

HI7

Page 86

Yes

2

5. Key Performance Indicators Relating to Public Health
5.1 Population vaccination coverage DTaP/IPV/Hib3 at age 12 months.
As this is a recovery target, no annual target is set.
5.1.1 This measure considers population coverage at age 12 months of the 6-in-1 vaccine
(vaccinating against diphtheria, hepatitis, Hib, polio, tetanus and whooping cough), which is given
in 3 doses at ages 2, 3 & 4 months.
5.1.2 The Q1 data therefore represents children who turned 12 months old between April and
June 2021, who were due their first vaccinations between June and October 2020. Children who
missed their vaccinations during that period would have been able to catch up at any time up to
age 12 months and still be included in this data.
5.1.3 The data for quarter 1 shows 85% of children had all of their 6-in-1 vaccination before the
age of 1. Comparison with pre-covid 19 rates (84%), indicates that immunisation levels have held
up, despite the pressure on services during covid 19.
5.1.4 The HealtheIntent childhood immunisation dashboard is a relatively new platform for use
within primary care. This provides daily updates on vaccination status, coding errors and overdue
vaccinations. It is the intention that this data will drive an improvement in the call -recall processes
within primary care in order to increase the childhood immunisation rates.
5.1.5 Data reported nationally for Islington can differ from HealtheIntent data due to coding
issues and data flows. We believe the HealtheIntent data to be the more accurate picture of true
levels of population coverage of immunisations.
5.2 Population vaccination coverage MMR2 (Age 5).
As this is a recovery target, no annual target is set.
5.2.1 This measure considers population coverage at age 5 years of the MMR vaccine (measles,
mumps and rubella), which is given in 2 doses at age 12 months and at age 3 years and 4
months.
5.2.2 Coverage for the MMR vaccine is measured when the child is age 5 years.
Q1 data therefore represents children who turned 5 years between April and June 2021 ; who
were due their first dose vaccination in Q1 2018 and their second dose vaccination between
August and October 2019. Children who missed their vaccinations during that period would have
been able to catch up at any time since and still be included in this data.
5.2.3 The HealtheIntent data for Q1 tells us that 70% of 5 year-old children were fully vaccinated
against MMR. This figure is very similar to data from the last 3 quarters. This locally extracted
(HealtheIntent) data is higher than that reported for Islington nationally, but is believed to be
more accurate. The nationally reported rates for Q3 and Q4 were 66.4% and 67% respectively
(national Q1 data is not yet available). This is a known discrepancy, due to inaccuracies in coding
and issues with data flows.
5.2.4 Pre-covid 19 levels of vaccination have been maintained through covid supported by
consistent messaging to parents via health visiting services and in school communications;
reminding parents of the importance of keeping all childhood vaccinations up to date, highlighting
opportunities for catch-up and the safety of the environment in which vaccines are delivered.

Page 87

3

5.2.5 A key priority for the coming year will be the newly available provision of accurate local data
through the HealtheIntent platform, providing the opportunity for immediate feedback to primary
care on due and overdue vaccinations. The HealtheIntent platform is also able to flag coding and
reporting errors, which are practical issues that can be addressed and should feed through into
more accurate data being available on the national vaccination data platform.
5.3 Number of child health clinics run per week (out of a pre-covid 19 quota of
13/week).
5.3.1 The Health Visiting Service is a universal service delivering the Healthy Child Programme to
all families in the borough with children aged 0-5. This includes 4 mandated developmental
reviews of young children between birth and age 2. Home-visiting to carry out these reviews is an
essential feature of the service in terms of safeguarding and early identification of problems.
5.3.2 The Child Health Clinics (13 weekly across the borough pre–covid 19) provide easy drop-in
access to the service and the clinics have always been well used by parents, particularly to check
weight (growth) and to discuss any concerns such as feeding, sleeping or emotional health.
5.3.3 The service reduced face-face visits significantly during covid 19, including the short-term
closure of all drop-in clinics. Both home visits and clinic access were gradually re-introduced with
appointment-only clinics to ensure covid 19 security.
5.3.4 Home visits are now the norm for new birth visits and a face-face appointment (home or
clinic) for 6-8 week checks. For those who do not want to have a home visit or face-face clinic
appointment, a virtual appointment is available. This ensures that the vast majority of families are
receiving 2 face-face visits within 8 weeks of birth.
5.3.5 The demand for appointments at a child health clinic remains high and the service offered
11 clinics per week during Q1. Access is through a triaged single duty phone line, allowing sameday access to a health visitor. A face-face appointment is always made available for urgent
situations.
5.3.6 Physical space for clinics has been a limitation with some health centre spaces prioritised for
covid 19 vaccinations, but this is now improving and the move back into children’s centres has
progressed during Q1. The service is working towards resuming drop-in clinics (i.e. no
appointment needed) with appropriate safety measures in place. These clinics provide an
important opportunity for parents to discuss minor health concerns with a health visitor,
potentially preventing unnecessary GP appointments or A&E visits.
5.4 Number of Long Acting Reversible Contraception (LARC) prescriptions in local
integrated sexual health services. The annual target of 1100.
5.4.1 Long Acting Reversible Contraception (LARC) is safe and highly effective in preventing
unintended pregnancies. Unlike other forms of birth control, it is a non-user dependent method of
contraception. Increasing the uptake and on-going use of LARC thereby supports a reduction in
unintended pregnancies, particularly amongst teenagers.

Page 88

4

5.4.2 The local integrated sexual health service provided by CNWL is a mandated open access
service providing advice, prevention, promotion, testing and treatment services for all issues
related to sexually transmitted infections and sexual and reproductive health care. This service
also provides other support to North Central London Boroughs such as outreach, training and
specialist interventions. It is the largest provider of LARC in London.
5.4.3 Covid 19 has severely impacted on activity in these services over the last eighteen months
as a consequence of stay at home instructions; staff redeployment to covid 19 care; staff
sickness; staff shielding and Infection Prevention and Control (IPC) requirements. Additionally, the
ability to use some of the smaller community estates safely, whilst maintaining social distancing
guidance has also constricted the operating capacity of services.
5.4.4 Quarter 1 is showing a marked improvement in performance to last quarter, with 637 LARC
fittings compared with 219 in the previous quarter and just 75 in the first quarter of 2020/21 at
the height of the impact of the first wave of covid 19. CNWL have been providing additional
clinics to mitigate the reduced capacity per clinic available whilst operating in a covid safe
environment. With increasing levels of fittings again, the service no longer holds a waiting list.
5.4.5 Whilst residents are now able to enjoy more freedom, services continue to face operational
challenges to deliver this service due to IPC measures, until guidance changed for fully vaccinated
health service staff and some staffing pressures due to social isolation. With this in mind, the
improvement in performance is a very welcome and positive result. This improving performance
should continue, but it is dependent on covid 19 restrictions and whilst these remain in place the
service as a whole will not be able to provide full in-clinic capacity.
5.4.6 Recovery for LARC will continue to be prioritised through our local community provider and
across primary care. Current areas of work to increase access to LARC include:
 Agreeing a contact variation with one of our Young People’s Sexual Health providers to
increase LARC clinics for all ages.
 Agreeing a contract variation with CCG abortion services to provide LARC to women outside
of the abortion pathway.
 Discussions with the NHS about other opportunities to organise and offer LARC.
5.5 Percentage of smokers using stop smoking services who stop smoking (measured
at four weeks after quit date). The annual target is 50%.
5.5.1 The community stop smoking service ‘Breathe’ offers behavioural support and provides stop
smoking aids to people who live, work or study in Camden & Islington. The 3-tiered service model
ensures that smokers receive the support that is appropriate for their needs and suited to their
lifestyle and circumstances.
5.5.2 The overall success rate of the service remains above the target (50%) at 62% in Q1 and
has increased from Q4 (58%). During covid 19, ‘Breathe’ implemented a remote consultation offer
of telephone/ video support and postal nicotine replacement therapy, which has been well utilised
and is successful. The majority of service users continue to access telephone support with very
good self-reported outcomes.
5.5.3 With activated recovery plans since the last quarter, face-to-face appointments have been
made available and carbon monoxide monitoring has since resumed in Q1 in some clinical
settings. The take up of face-to-face appointments is expected to steadily increase.

Page 89

5

5.5.4. NHS Trusts are implementing system improvements through the NHS Prevention
Programme: tobacco dependence treatment plan, across NCL. This is expected to help increase
referral rates and outcomes for patients from hospital during 2021-22, which have been very
affected through the most impacted of covid 19 periods. ‘Breathe’ continues to work closely with
Whittington Hospital clinical teams where ward rounds by the stop smoking specialist have
resumed since the last quarter for example. We expect this to increase and to improve
opportunities to verify quits with carbon monoxide monitoring.
5.5.5 Almost half of quits were under the ‘Breathe’ community service in Q1 2021/22, compared
with 29% (pre-covid 19) in the same quarter of 2019/20. The service also supports a network of
stop smoking specialists working in GP practices and pharmacies (locally commissioned services)
through training and activity monitoring. Stop smoking activity continues to increase in these
settings compared to 2020-21 levels, but during this quarter remained well below pre-pandemic
levels.
5.5.6 Islington residents continue to receive a high quality stop smoking service in Q1, with
flexible options for support further proactive identification and referral of smokers by health
professionals across all settings would ensure that vulnerable residents are prioritised during and
after the pandemic. Lessons learnt through service changes during the pandemic will inform
service plans going forward, by identifying effective ways of working and delivering services
flexibly post covid 19.
5.6 Percentage of drug users in drug treatment who successfully complete treatment
and do not re-present within 6 months. The annual target is 20%.
5.6.1 ‘Better Lives’ is the integrated drug and alcohol treatment service in Islington. The service is
commissioned to provide comprehensive support to local residents aged 18+ who need support in
addressing their alcohol and/or drug use. This includes:










Harm minimisation advice
1:1 structured support
Substitute prescribing
Group sessions
Peer support
On-site mutual aid (pre-covid 19)
Education, training and employment
Family support service
Psychiatric and psychological assessment and support

5.6.2 During 2020/21, ‘Better Lives’ remained open and accessible but changed the way in which
interventions were delivered to mitigate the impacts of covid 19. For current service users, there
was a move to remote support, where safe to do so, support is offered via telephone, resource
packs and digital solutions such as Zoom groups and the use of various recovery applications.
5.6.3 In the initial months of the lockdown period service users who were particularly vulnerable,
had medicines and other essential items delivered to their homes. Services also increased the
distribution of naloxone (an easy to administer medicine that rapidly reverses an opioid overdose)
and safe storage boxes for medications.

Page 90

6

5.6.4 ‘Better Lives’ were a key partner in supporting the “Everyone In” initiative and were able to
provide rapid prescribing for rough sleepers who were placed in emergency accommodation. This
resulted in a marked increase in the numbers of people accessing drug treatment, many of whom
had very complex needs, so making the overall case mix of the service more complex. Since then,
it has been possible to offer other types of remote support including online groups and online keyworking.
5.6.5 By the end of autumn 2020, a number of on-line groups were available to service users
including mindfulness, support for sobriety and relapse prevention. The service has been working
hard to re-instate as much face-to-face provision as possible, although these activities have to be
carefully managed so that social distancing can be maintained in buildings.
5.6.6 Q1 performance is at 13.2%, this is an increase from Q4 when performance was at 12 %.
This quarter’s performance does not meet the target of 20%, however, the service has seen an
increase in the overall complexity of people in drug treatment linked to the substance misuse
support offered to rough sleepers placed in emergency accommodation. The service has also
continued to actively retain people in treatment (instead of discharging) in order that service users
are supported during the pandemic. Both of these are factors in the lower percentage of people
who have left treatment successfully compared with the immediate pre- covid period.
5.7 Percentage of alcohol users who successfully complete the treatment plan. The
annual target is 42%.
5.7.1 Performance for Q1 demonstrates an increase in the percentage of alcohol users
successfully completing treatment at 37% (Q4 performance was 32.8%). The target of 42% has
not been met, however, Q1 saw an increase of 5.8%. During the pandemic the service reported
an increase in demand for alcohol interventions, with a number of previous service users reporting
not being able to manage recovery during the lockdown and have subsequently begun drinking
once more.
5.7.2 Commissioners are working with service providers to manage current demand and to ensure
support and advice is widely available for any Islington resident who may be concerned with their
own or others' alcohol use. This includes promotion of a new alcohol awareness app "Lower My
Drinking" which is available for all Islington residents. The ‘Lower My Drinking’ App is promoted
by ‘Better Lives’ on their website, social media channels, and via drug and alcohol awareness
training sessions. There is information about the app on the NCL GP “alcohol” webpages and on
the electronic boards shown by GPs and Housing.
5.7.3 The key priorities for the service going forward are:
•
Ensuring that all critical face to face interventions are reinstated safely and as soon as
possible. These include drug screening; blood borne virus screening.
•
Assessing lessons learnt from service changes in response to covid 19 and to develop
new ways of working post covid 19.

Page 91

7

6. Implications
6.1 Financial implications:
There are no financial implications arising as a direct result of this report.
Any plans or strategies derived or agreed in relation to this report should use existing available
resources and therefore not create a budget pressure for the Council.
6.2 Legal Implications:
There are no legal implications arising from this report.
6.3 Environmental Implications and contribution to achieving a net zero carbon
Islington by 2030:
There is no environmental impact arising from monitoring performance.
6.4 Resident Impact Assessment:
The council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of opportunity, and foster
good relations, between those who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do not
share it (section 149 Equality Act 2010).
The council has a duty to have due regard to the need to remove or minimise disadvantages, take
steps to meet needs, in particular steps to take account of disabled persons' disabilities and
encourage people to participate in public life. The council must have due regard to the need to
tackle prejudice and promote understanding.
7. Conclusion
The Council’s Corporate Plan sets out a clear set of priorities, underpinned by a set of firm
commitments and actions that we will take over the next four years to work towards our vision of
a Fairer Islington. The corporate performance indicators are one of a number of tools that enable
us to ensure that we are making progress in delivering key priorities whilst maintaining good quality
services.

Signed by:

Jonathan O’ Sullivan
Acting Director of Public Health
Corporate Director and Exec Member

Date: November 2021

Report Author:
Jasmin Suraya Commissioning, Governance & Contracts Officer
Tel:
020 7527 8344
Email:
Jasmin.suraya@islington.gov.uk

Page 92

8

Page 93

9

This page is intentionally left blank

Chief Executive Department
Town Hall, London N1 2UD
Report of:
Meeting of:
Health and Care Scrutiny
Committee

Date:

Ward(s):

Delete as appropriate

Exempt

Non-exempt

SUBJECT: Quarter 1 Performance Report
1.

Synopsis

1.1

The council has in place a suite of corporate performance indicators to help monitor progress in
delivering the outcomes set out in the council’s Corporate Plan. Progress on key performance
measures are reported through the council’s Scrutiny Committees on a quarterly basis to ensure
accountability to residents and to enable challenge where necessary.

1.2

This report sets out Quarter 1 2021/22 progress against targets for those performance indicators
that fall within the Adult Social Care outcome area, for which the Health and Care Scrutiny
Committee has responsibility.

1.3

It is suggested that Scrutiny undertake a deep dive of one objective under the related corporate
outcome over a 12-month period. This will enable more effective monitoring and challenge as
required.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

To note performance against targets in Quarter 1 2021/22 for measures relating to Health and
Independence

2.2

To suggest one objective under related corporate outcome for a deep dive review, to take place over
a 12-month period.

Page 95

Page 1 of 11

3.

Background

3.1

A suite of corporate performance indicators has been agreed for 2018-22, which help track progress
in delivering the seven priorities set out in the Council’s Corporate Plan - Building a Fairer Islington.
Targets are set on an annual basis and performance is monitored internally, through Departmental
Management Teams, Corporate Management Board and Joint Board, and externally through the
Scrutiny Committees.

3.2

The Health and Care Committee is responsible for monitoring and challenging performance for the
following key outcome area: Adult Social Care.

3.3

Scrutiny Committees can suggest a deep dive against one objective under the related corporate
outcome. This will enable a comprehensive oversight of suggested objective, using triangulation of
data such as complaints, risk reports, resident surveys and financial data and, where able to, hearing
from partners, staff and residents, getting out into the community and visiting services, to better
understand the challenge and provide more solid recommendations.

Page 96

Page 2 of 11

4.

Quarter 1 performance update – Adult Social Care

4.1

Key performance indicators relating to Adult Social Care.

2020/21
Actual

Target
2021/22

Q1
2021/22

On
target?

Q1 last
year

Better than
Q1 last
year?

ASC1

Percentage of ASC
service users receiving
long term support
who have received at
least one review

39%

52%

48%

No

45%

Yes

ASC2

New admissions to
nursing or residential
care homes (all ages)

186

159
(40 per
quarter)

66

No

28

No

ASC3

Percentage of service
users who have been
supported with
safeguarding and who
are able to comment,
report that their
desired outcomes
were fully achieved
(making safeguarding
personal)

67%

70%

62%

No

70%

No

7.8%

8.2%

7.9%

Yes

8.1%

Similar

27%

30%

27%

No

28%

No

PI
No.

ASC4

ASC5

Indicator

The proportion of adults
with a learning disability
in paid employment

Percentage of service
users receiving
services in the
community through
Direct Payments

Page 97

Page 3 of 11

4.2

Percentage of ASC service users receiving long term support who have received at least
one review
As of Q1 2021/22, 48% of service users who have been receiving services since the beginning of the
year have had a review in the last 12 months. Although below the target of 52%, it is important to
note that performance has significantly improved since last quarter (39%) and better than Q1 2020/21
(45%). 386 reviews on service users receiving long term support were completed this quarter, 53 more
reviews than Q1 2020/21.
Overall, the service has completed more reviews in 2021/22 than at this point in 2020/21, despite the
increased pressure on the service. This indicator also only captures reviews completed with residents
who have had support from Adult Social Care for more than a 12-month period. However, the actual
number of reviews completed with all residents receiving support has been considerably higher.
Reviews relating to the Health provided Covid funding streams, which initially provided 6 week, now
reduced to 4 week funding to support discharges from hospitals have understandably had to be
prioritised.
The prioritisation of these covid related reviews has enabled Adult Social Care to review all these cases
in a timely manner enabling the department to ensure that the best possible outcomes are achieved
for residents.

Page 98

Page 4 of 11

Why is this not on target?




Teams across Adult Social Care have been responding to the pressures associated with the
pandemic, for example discharges from hospitals, increased safeguarding as well as increased
isolation and concerns relating to mental wellbeing, in addition to the business as usual remit.
Teams have had to find a balance throughout the pandemic period. However, they are now able to
focus more on the scheduled reviews of residents with long-term support. The Community
Placement and Review Team (CPRT), North and South Integrated Community Social Work Teams
and Occupational Therapy teams have reprioritised work throughout the pandemic depending on
need. This included welfare checks for people who were most at risk during the pandemic and
following up on safeguarding concerns. There was also the need to complete a large number of
Continuing Health Care (CHC) reviews
As noted above during the pandemic Health funding has been provided to aid the safe and timely
discharge of residents from hospital. Funding was initially for a 6-week period and subsequently is
now provided for a 4-week period. There is a requirement for Adult Social Care to review all
residents receiving this funding within these timescales with a focus on strengths and the best
possible outcomes for the individual. This area has been a priority for the department, and has
been successfully managed throughout.

What action are you taking to get it back on track?




Weekly review check in meetings with team managers and heads of service
Monthly review board to monitor progress.
The department’s dedicated review team (CPRT) has designed a revised review framework to
manage a higher volume of reviews more effectively and this has enabled the team to complete
an increased number of reviews, and in addition relieve the pressure on the North and South
Locality teams by taking 100 cases that were awaiting a review. This work continues with more
cases being prioritised in this way.

When do you expect it to be back on track?
We expect to continue the upward direction of travel and see improvements in reviews in the next
quarter.

Page 99

Page 5 of 11

4.3

New admissions to nursing or residential care homes (all ages)
The Council provides residential and nursing care for those who are no longer able to live independently
in their own homes. The aim is to support more people to remain independent and within the community
for longer, therefore keeping admissions to a minimum. At the end of Quarter 1 2021/22, we have had
66 new admissions, above the target of 40 per quarter (159 total placements for the year).
In the past year, Adult Social Care has seen an increase in hospital discharges, safeguarding concerns
and complex cases. T he change in demand due to the pandemic has affected the overall number of new
admissions to care homes. Listed below are some reasons why we have a high number of admissions this
quarter.
Why is this not on target?



There has been an increasing complexity of need associated with the pandemic and this has seen
more people requiring long-term support in a care setting following discharge from hospital.
Hospital discharges peaked in Q4 2020/21 and the impact of this will be seen in Q1 and Q2 of 2021/22

What action are you taking to get it back on track?




Daily Integrated Quality Assurance Meeting (IQAM) and daily hospital panel to sign off any packages
of care. Admissions to Care Homes from hospital and in the community are scrutinised and approved
by Heads of Service and the senior leadership team in Adult Social Care. A strengths based approach
to support planning is taken with an emphasis on supporting people to remain in their own homes
wherever possible, and appropriate, with support from home care, Telecare, assistive technology,
voluntary community services, equipment, informal/community support and Health when needed.
Management actions in place to provide assurance that all support packages are recorded in a timely
manner on the electronic care records system (LAS) to enable accurate performance recording in this
area.

When do you expect it to be back on track?
When the pandemic has stabilised and the number of hospital admissions and discharges reduces to a
more appropriate level.

Page 100

Page 6 of 11

4.4

The proportion of adults with a learning disability in paid employment
This national Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) measure intends to improve employment
outcomes for individuals with a learning disability. The reason for including this as a new corporate
indicator this year is threefold. Firstly, we know that COVID-19 has affected employment nationwide, with
the unemployment rate in the UK higher than what is was pre-pandemic. Secondly, we know there is a
strong link between employment and quality of life. Being in paid employment benefits an individual’s
health, wellbeing, finances and the economy. Finally, we know that adults with learning disabilities
experience inequalities when seeking to enter the job market.
Local performance is on target, with 7.9% of individuals with a primary support reason of learning
disability in paid employment. This similar to Q1 2020/21 (8.1%) and within 5% of the target (8.2%).
What action has been taken





Islington’s iSet service is due to launch in October, the re-branded employment service supporting
residents with learning disabilities (previously known as the Community Access Project).
The learning disability and autism subgroup meet every quarter. This group brings together council
(iSet) and employment support providers to review data, discuss any challenges and share networking
opportunities across the system.
Employment support partners reported 8 new job starts in Quarter 1.

Areas for further development



Guidance to be revised on the recording of employment information to ensure the department is
capturing all people with a learning disability in paid employment.
There are plans being rolled out that will increase the number of reviews completed with people with
learning disabilities. This will support the identification of more residents who can access paid
employment.

Page 101

Page 7 of 11

4.5

Making Safeguarding Personal (An individualised approach to safeguarding that
focusses particularly on what the resident would like the outcome of the safeguarding
to be)
This indicator measures the percentage of service users who have been supported with
safeguarding, and who are able to comment, report that their desired outcomes were fully
achieved.
This is a new indicator for 2021/22 and it helps the service monitor safeguarding. The
safeguarding adult’s duties are enshrined in the Care Act 2014. The Care Act form ally introduced
the requirement for local authorities to safeguard people using a personalised approach. This
approach is Making Safeguarding Personal (MSP). MSP places the service user at the centre of
safeguarding conversations, decisions and actions.
One of the assurance mechanisms to track that the Making Safeguarding Personal principles are
being followed is achieved is by asking service users if their desired outcomes were fully met from
the safeguarding investigation.
In Q1, 62% of service users reported that their desired outcomes were fully achieved, below the
target of 70% and Q1 last year (70%).
Why is this not on target?











Capturing this outcome accurately on the system has not been consistent. There are robust
management actions to remedy this.
There are management action plans in place that focus on developing and improving practice
across all service areas. These plans have shared ownership and responsibility with agreed
timescales on actions.

What action are you going to take to get it back on track?
Working with Islington Digital Services (IDS) to review the safeguarding module of our
electronic case records system (LAS) to ensure that this, and other key questions, are
mandatory to answer for staff completing.
Performance reporting the figures to team managers and sending validation reports to pick
up missing data
Safeguarding audits and reviews at the point the case is closed, led by the Safeguarding Team
leads, will focus on improving this indicator, as well as providing assurance in relation to other
key elements of the safeguarding process.
Raising practice issues at bi-monthly practitioner forums and via managers meetings

When do you expect it to be back on track?
We expect to see a small impact in Q2 with noticeable improvements in Q3.

Page 102

Page 8 of 11

4.6

Percentage of service users receiving services in the community through Direct
Payments
Adult Social Care is currently below the target of 30%, in Q1 2021/22 with 27% of Islington
community care and support provided via a Direct Payments. It should be noted however that
this % equates to 626 service users receiving services in the community via a direct payment
this quarter which is a higher number than Q1 2020/21 when there were 564 service users.
Therefore, the % is based on a higher number of residents requiring support which is in the
main due to the increased pandemic demand.

Why is this not on target?


Service user recruitment of new personal assistants was paused during the pandemic. This
is due to the risk of bringing a personal assistant into the home and other COVID-19
associated risks. This ‘pause’ has now been lifted and recruitment can proceed as before.

What action are you going to take to get it back on track?





Identified 72 new people with learning disabilities eligible for direct payments and the team
is in the process of transferring these individuals over to direct payments
There are a number of Direct Payments (DPs) User and carers forums and working groups
that have been commenced that are focussing on improvements to processes, coproduction work to further develop the offer, peer support initiatives and improved Personal
Assistant finding via an online offer in particular but also the overall support offer for DP
users.
Other work within the department includes the review and refresh of Direct Payments (DPs)
policies and procedures to ensure that DPs are as streamlined as possible to set up, for the
resident but also the Adult Social Care staff. This work also includes a new commissioning
framework for managed DP accounts, for residents who might not be able to manage a DP
independently, that will enable more residents to benefit from the increased independence
and autonomy a DP can provide

When do you expect it to be back on track?
Improvements should be see next quarter with the additional 72 individuals transferred to direct
payments.

Page 103

Page 9 of 11

5.

Implications
Financial implications:

5.1

The cost of providing resources to monitor performance is met within each service’s core
budget.
Legal Implications:

5.2

There are no legal duties upon local authorities to set targets or monitor performance.
However, these enable us to strive for continuous improvement.
Environmental Implications and contribution to achieving a net zero carbon
Islington by 2030:

5.3

There are no environmental impact arising from monitoring performance.

Resident Impact Assessment:
5.4

The council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of opportunity, and
foster good relations, between those who share a relevant protected characteristic and those
who do not share it (section 149 Equality Act 2010).

5.5

The council has a duty to have due regard to the need to remove or minimise disadvantages,
take steps to meet needs, in particular steps to take account of disabled persons' disabilities,
and encourage people to participate in public life. The council must have due regard to the
need to tackle prejudice and promote understanding.

6.

Conclusion

6.1

The Council’s Corporate Plan sets out a clear set of priorities, underpinned by a set of firm
commitments and actions that we will take over the next four years to work towards our
vison of a Fairer Islington. The corporate performance indicators are one of a number of tools
that enable us to ensure that we are making progress in delivering key priorities whilst
maintaining good quality services.

Signed by:

[Corporate Director and Exec Member]
Report Author:
Tel:

Date: [add date]

Evie Lodge
7536

Page 104

Page 10 of 11

Email:

Evie.lodge@islington.gov.uk

Page 105

Page 11 of 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 15
HEALTH AND CARE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22
Agenda Despatch Date – 16 June 2021
24 JUNE 2021
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Health and Wellbeing Board update
Work Programme 2021/22
Scrutiny Review – Approval of topic
COVID 19 update
LAS – Performance update
NHS Database

Agenda Despatch Date – 16 July 2021
26 JULY 2021
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

Scrutiny Review – Presentation/SID
Health and Wellbeing update
Work Programme 2021/22
COVID 19 update
Whittington Hospital Performance update
Merger of CCG’s
Health Inequalities report – CCG
Quarter 4 Performance report

Agenda Despatch – 24 September 2021
04 OCTOBER 2021 – THEMED SCRUTINY MENTAL HEALTH
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Health and Wellbeing update
Work Programme 2021/22
COVID 19 update
Camden and Islington Mental Health Trust Performance update
Scrutiny Review – Approval of SID/witness evidence

Agenda Despatch – 8 November 2021
16 NOVEMBER 2021
1. Scrutiny Review – witness evidence
2. Health and Wellbeing Update
3. Work Programme 2020/21

Page 107

4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

Performance indicators – Quarter 1
COVID 19 update
Healthwatch Annual Report/Work Programme
Executive Member Annual Report
Local Account

Agenda Despatch – 08 December 2021
16 DECEMBER 2021
1.Scrutiny Review – witness evidence
2 Health and Wellbeing update
3. Work Programme 2021/22
5. COVID 19 update
6. Alcohol and Drug Abuse – Update
7. Islington Safeguarding Board Annual Report

Agenda Despatch – 31 December 2021
10 JANUARY 2022
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Health and Well Being update
Moorfields Performance update
COVID update
Scrutiny Review – witness evidence
Annual Public Health report
Work Programme 2021/22

Agenda Despatch – 11 February 2022
21 FEBRUARY 2022
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

COVID update
Work Programme 2021/22
Health and Wellbeing update
Scrutiny Review – Draft recommendations
Performance indicators – Quarter 2
UCLH Performance update

Agenda Despatch – 21 March 2022
29 MARCH 2022
1,
2.
3,
4.
5.

COVID update
Health and Wellbeing update
Scrutiny Review – Final report
LAS Performance update
Performance indicators – Quarter 3

Page 108

Page 109

This page is intentionally left blank

